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I. KEY AGENCY INFORMATION AND MANA(;EMENT

(b) Principal Activities
i. Mandate

The mandate of TWWDA is outlined in the Water Act 2016 section 68 and include:
a) Development, maintenance and management olNational Public Water Works

b) Operate Water Works and provide water services as a Water Service Provider

c) Provide reserve capacity for purposes of providing water services

d) Provide Technical Services and Capacity Building to County Govemments and WSPs as may

be requested.

e) Provide Technical Suppo( to the Water Cabinet Secretary in discharge ol their functions.

ll. Vision

An innovative and Resourceful institution in development of bulk water and sanitation

works.

Mission

Mission of the Agency is to develop sustainable National Water and Sanitation Public

Works within our area of jurisdiction that enhances socio-economic growth for our

stakeholders.

Core values

TWWDA core values conslitute the fundamental bedrock beliefs that drive the Agency.

These beliefs are essential and must be upheld because they shape the Agency's culture

lll.

ii ll']a g c

(a) Background information
Tana Water Works Development Agency (TWWDA) formerly Tana Water Services Board

(TWSB) was established under section 65 of the Water Act. 2016 vide legal notice no. 27 of 266

April 2019. The Agency is domiciled in Kenya. The Agency is a State Corporation currently

under the Ministry of Water and Sanitation. TWSB covered six (6) Counties in Mount Kenya

region namely; Murang'a, Nyeri, Kirinyaga, Embu, Tharaka-Nithi, and Meru however, after the

formation of Water Works Development Agency Murang'a County was hived off Tana to Athi

Water Works Development Agency. The transition period is for three (3) years and therefore the

ongoing projects in Murang'a County being implemenled by TWWDA will continue being

implemented to completion
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as it seeks to achieve leadership in quality service delivery. TWWDA therefore upholds

the following core values;

a) Competence

We shall strive to uphold high level ofcapability and innovativeness in all our activities.

b) Teamwork

We shall strive to value and promote team spirit.

c) Quality

We shall strive to emphasize on excellence to comply and exceed the set standards.

d) Integrity

We shall be honest and fair in all our undertakings.

e) Customer Focus

TWWDA shall provide customer driven exceptional service that meets and exceeds

customers' expectations.

0 Good governance

We shall practice good corporate govemance in our services.

g) Sustainable development

We shall endeavour to develop utilities that meet the needs of the present generation without

compromising the ability of the future generations to meet their own needs.

(c) Key Management
The Agency's day+o-day managemenl is under the following key organs:

I . Board Members

2. Chief Executive Officer and Secretary to the Board

3. Senior Management comprising of;

. Finance Department,

. Technical Services Department,

o Planning and Strategy Department,

. Human Resource and Administration Division.

o ProcurementDivision.

o lnformation Communication and Technology Division, and

. Intemal Audit Division

iiill'agc
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(d) Fiduciary Management
The key management personnel who held olfice during the llnancial year ended 30th June
2019 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility are:

No. Designation Namc
I Chief Executive Officer Eng. Moses Naivasha
2 Technical Services Manager Eng. John Mbogori
3 Head of Finance CPA Nicholas Kanyeke
4 Planning & Strategy Manager Mr. lrari Wagereka
5 Human Resource and

Administration Manager
Mrs. Pauline Miriga

6 Procurement Manager Mr. James Ribiru
7 lnformation Communication and

Technology Manager
lt Internal Audit and Assurance

Manager
Mr. Vincenl Kachi

(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements
To enhance corporate govemance! the Board has three working committees namely; Finance

and Administration, Technical, Planning & Strategy and Audit and Govemance Committees.

Finance and Administrotion Committee

The Finance and Administration Committee is responsible for overseeing:

F Leadership and coordination of Finance & Accounts in accordance with the Public

Finance Management Act, 2012, and development, review and implementation of

strategies for resource mobilization;

P Human Resource Management & Development, Administration, Inlormation and

Communications Technology and Corporate Communication functions; and

) Procurement ofgoods, works and services, Inventory management and disposal.

The members of the Finance and Administration Committee are:

ll.

I[.

iv.

Dr Purity Muthoni - Committee chair was appointed to the Board on 7d February 2019

Ms. Winfred Mwai - appoinled on 2nd October 2015 and her first term expired on l'r

October 2018 and was re-appointed to the Board on 7th February 2019

Ms. Anne Wangechi - was appointed to the Board on 7th February 2019

CS The National Treasury and Planning

PS Ministry of Water and Sanitation

ivll'age
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Head of Finance -Secretary to the Committee

Mr. Jamal Runyenjes - appointed on 2nd October 2015 and his expired on 1st October

201 8

Technical Planning and Strategt Commiltee

The Technical. Planning & Strategy Committee is responsible for:

i Technical planning and design, intiastructure development, asset management, liaison

and capacity development; and

i Development and review of strategic and business plans, quality assurance, risk

management coordination, knowledge management, performance management,

business process re-engineering. coordinating research, and monitoring & evaluation

of Agency programmes and projecls.

The members of the Technical, Planning and Strategy Committee are;
i. Mr. Joseph M'Eruaki - Committee chair was appointed to the Board on 7th

February 2019

ii. Mr David Njagi - was appointed to the Board on 7th February 2019

iii. Ms. Anne Wangechi - was appointed to the Board on 7th February 2019

iv. CS The National Treasury and Planning

v. PS Ministry of Water and Sanitalion

vi. Technical Services Manager - Secretary to the committee

vii. Mr. Moses Migwi Mbuthia - Committee chair appointed on 2'd October 2015 and

his term expired on I 'r October 201 8

viii. Mr. Moses Kithinji Rutere - appointed on 2nd October 2015 and his term expired on

I't October 201 8

Audit and Governance Commiltee

The Audit and Govemance Committee is responsible for providing assurance to the Agency on

intemal conlrol systems. risk management and govemance structures.

The members are:

i. Mr David Njagi- Committee chair was appointed to the Board on 7th February 2019

ii. Mr. Joseph M'Eruaki - was appointed to the Board on 7th February 2019
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lll.

lv.

vi.

Ms Winfred Mwai - appointed on 2nd October 2015 and her first term expired on I'r

October 2018 and was re-appointed to the Board on 7th February 2019

CS The National Treasury and Planning

PS Ministry of Water and Sanitation

Intemal Audit and Assurance Manager-Secretary to the committee

During the FY 2018/19 the following Board Members term expired on l't October 2018;

i. Mr. Jamal Runyenjes

ii. Ms. Winfred Mwai

iii. Mr. Moses Migwi Mbuthia

iv. Mr. Moses Kithinji Rutere

vill'lgc
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(f) TWWDA Headquarters
P. O. Box 1292 - 10100
Maji House
Baden Powell road
Nyeri, KENYA

(g) TWWDA Contacts
Telephone: 061-2032282
Fax: 061- 20341 l8
Email address: info(@tanawsb.or.ke or tanawaterboard@yahoo.com
Website: www.tanawsb.or. ke

(h) TWWDA Bankers
Kenya Commercial Bank
Nyeri Branch
P.O Box 215 - 10100
Nyeri. KENYA

(i) Independent Auditors
Ol-fice of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers. University Way
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Nairobi. Kenya

fi) Principal Legal Adviser
The Atlomey General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 401l2
City Square 00200
Nairobi. Kenya

viill'agc
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II. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dr. Purity Muthoni Nkoroi
Dr. Nkoroi is an independent director bom in 1962. She was appointed to
the Board on 7th February 2019 vide Kenya gazette notice No. 124'7 . She
hold a PHD in Education Management, a Master's degree in Education
and Bachelor's degree in Education from Kenyatta University. She is a

council member of Tharaka University College. She is the immediate
former principal at Ndagani Secondary School fiom 2007-2018. She is
the current Chair of the Finance and Administration Committee of the
TWWDA Board.

Hon. Joseph M'Eruaki M'uthari
Hon. M'uthari is an independent director bom in 1967. He was appointed
to the Board on 7'h February 2019 vide Kenya gazette notice No. 1247.

He holds Master's Degree in Developmenl Studies from St. Pauls
University and a degree in Bachelor of Science in Forestry from Moi
University. He is the immediate former member of parliament of Igembe
North Constituency, Meru County. He is the current Chair of the
Technical, Planning and Strategy Committee and a member of the Audit
and Govemance Commitlee of the TWWDA Board.

Mr. David Njagi Ngonge
Mr. Ngonge is an independent director bom in 1963. He was appointed to
the Board on 7th February 2019 vide gazette notice No. 1247. He holds a
Master's Degree of Art in Environmental Law and a B.Sc degree in
Agriculture from University ol Nairobi. He is the Board Member/team
leader at Dalquarter consult, a firm of Experts. He was a
volunteer/consultant with metro Metropolitan Training Consultancy
(MTC) lrom 2002 to 2008. He has vast experience in research in the field
ol irrigation. He is the current Chair of the Audit and Govemance
Committee and a member of the Technical, Planning and Strategy
Committee of the TWWDA Board.
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Ms. Winfred Mwai
Ms. Mwai is an independent director bom in 1971. She was appointed on
2nd October 2015 and her first term expired on lst October 2018 and re-
appointed to the Board on 7th February 2019 vide g^zette notice No. 1247.
Ms. Mwai holds an MBA, a Bachelor's degree in Interrelations and a
Diploma in Business Administration. She is the Director Operations at
Figaros Limited since 2007. She was the 2nd Secretary Ministry of Foreign
Alfairs from 2003 to 2007. She was an Administrative Assistant at Kenya
Airways from 1999 to 2000. She is a Board Member at Chamber of
Commerce and Chairperson Mama Winnie Foundation She is a member ol
the Finance and Administration and Audit and Govemance Committee of
the TWWDA Board.

Ms. Anne Wangechi Githinji
Ms. Githinji is an independent director bom in 1968. She was appointed to
the Board on 7th February 20l9vide gazette notice No. 1247. She holds a
bachelor's degree in law and a diploma from Kenya School of Law and a
bachelor's degree of Social Legislation from Marathwada University. She is
an advocate of the High Court of Kenya. She is a Managing Partner at
Masakhwe & Co. Advocates. She is the immediate former Speaker County
Assembly of Kirinyaga County. She is a member of Finance and
Administration Committee and Technical, Planning and Strategy Committee
ol the TWWDA Board.

Eng. John Mugo Muiruri
Eng. Muiruri was born in l96l he is the altemate to the Principal Secretary,
Ministry of Water and Sanitation. He holds an MBA fiom Eastem and
Southem Africa Management Institute (ESAMI), Arusha, Tanzani4 a B.Sc
degree in Civil Engineering from University of Nairobi and four
postgraduate diplomas. He is currently the Director Water infrastructure
Development with vast experience in dam design and resource
mobilization. He was the chief Manager, Infrastructure Development
('Iechnical Services) Athi Water Works Development Agency from 2004-
2015. He was fbrmerly the acting CEO, Athi Water Works Development
Agency from 2002-2004. He is the immediate fbrmer chair of National

Environment Trust Fund (NETFUND)

I
I
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CPA Edward Kariungu WamweYa
CPA Wamweya was bom in 1984 he is the altemate to the Cabinet

Secretary, The National Treasury and Planning. He holds an MBA degree

in Finante, Bachelor of Commerce (Finance Option) degree, CPA (K) and

is a Certified Investment and Financial Analyst (CIFAK) He is currently a

Senior Investment Officer in The National Treasury and Planning with

three years experience in monitoring financial performance of State

Corpoiations, managing ofGoK loans to State Corporations, preparation of
lending agreements, appraisal of State Corporations projects, analyzing and

.."o*i.t.iding for approval of State Corporations annual budgets and

financing ug.J.*.rtt rilating to Parastatals bonowing' He is a member of
ICPAK and ICIFA.

Eng. Moses Mbae Naivasha - Chief Executive Officer/ Secretary to

the Board
Eng. Naivasha was bom in 1959. He was appointed to the Agency on lsr

Deiember 2008. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree from University

of Nairobi and a Post Graduate Diploma in Hydraulic and Environmental

Engineering from the Intemational Institute for Hydraulic and

Eniironmental Engineering (lHE), Delft, The Netherlands His main

responsibilities include: ensuring safe custody and management of the

Aglncy's assets, providing strategic direction and leadership to the

elency's staff, diveloping and maintaining a conductive working

en-vironment for attracting, retaining and motivating employees' Other

responsibilities include; developing policies, recommending to the

Aglncy the corporate policies, long term strategy, business plans and

anirual operating budgets and ensuring effective planning and

implemeniation of the Agency's strategies and approved work plans He

is the Secretary of the Board.

Mr. Moses Migwi Mbuthia
Mr. Migwi wa"s bom in 1967 . He was appointed to the Board on 2nd

Octobei20l5 vide gazette notice No. 7465. He represenls Tharaka Nithi

County. He holds an MBA and BA degree in Building Economics' He is a

membir of IQSK, CIAK and AAK. He previously worked as a senior civil
servant in the Ministry of Public Works ior l2 years. He was an Assistant

Registrar, BORAQS for 4 years. Mr. Migwi has provided consultancy

."rii""r to the African Development Bank Health Project II & III' He is

the CEO, Marimo Construction Ltd. His term expired on lst October 2018'

xlPage
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Mr. Jamal Runyenjes
Mr. Jamal Runyenjes was bom in 1972. He was appointed to the Board on
2no October 2015 vide gazette notice No. 7a65. He represents Embu
County. He holds a Bachelor,s degree in Education from KU. He is a
businessperson. His term expired on l.tOctober 201g.

Mr. Moses Kithinji Rutere
Mr. Rutere was bom in 1978. He was appointed to the Board on 2nd
October 2015 vide gazette notice No. 7465. He represents Meru County.
He_holds an MA degree in Project planning and Management from UOirl
and Bsc. degree in Environmental Science from Egerton University. He is a
scholar at MUST, UON and MKU. previously he worked at Ecoplan
Consulting firm for 5 years as an Environment programmes Director and as
a Geographic Information System data analyst in charge of GIS at
CENTRAD for 3 years. He also worked as a projecl Coordinator of South
Imenti Youth Company. His term expired on 1" October 201 g.

I
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III, MANAGEMENT TEAM

Eng. Moses Mbae Naivasha - Chief Executive Officer
Eng. Naivasha holds a Bachelor of Science degree from University
of Nairobi and a Post Graduate Diploma in Hydraulic and

Environmental Engineering t'rom the Intemational Institute for
Hydraulic and Environmental Engineering (lHE), Delft, The
Netherlands. He was appointed to the Agency on l't December 2008.
His main responsibilities include: ensuring safe custody and

management of the Agency's assets, providing strategic direction
and leadership to the Agency's staff, developing and maintaining a

conductive working environment for attracting, retaining and

motivating employees. Other responsibilities include; developing
policies, recommending to the Agency the corporate policies, long
term strategy, business plans and annual operating budgets and

ensuring elfective planning and implementation of the Agency's
strategies and approved work plans.

Eng. John Nyaga Mbogori - Technical Services Manager
Eng. Mbogori holds a Bsc. degree liom North-East Saxony University,
Germany. His main responsibilities include; Overseeing the
engagement, management and supervision of contractors and

consultants, managemenl of contractual works and preparation of
project certifi cates, directing, co-ordinating, controlling and managing
the Agency's technical operations and ensuring good maintenance of
inlrastructure fbr quality water and sewerage services of existing Water
Service Providers(WSP) and close consultation with development
partners and other stakeholders 10 ensure efficient and efl'ective
implementation of funded water and sanitation infrastructure.

a
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CPA Nicholas Mutunga Kanyeke - Head of Finance
CPA Kanyeke holds an MBA degree from KCA University and a
B.Com degree from UoN. He is a member of ICPAK and CISA. He
joined the Agency on 25rh May 2009. His responsibilities include;
establishing financial and management systems for the efl'ective
implementation of the Agency's goals and policies, advice the CEO and

the Board on the tinancial position of the proposed projects and

investments, ensuring compliance with the Intemational Accounting
Standards on linancial reporting tbr the Agency.

l
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Mr. James lrari Wagereka - Planning and Stretes/ Manager
Mr. Irari holds a Bsc. degree in Civil Engineering from UoN and a post
Graduate Diploma in Water Resources Management from the
Intemational Institute for Aerospace Survey and Earth Sciences,
Netherlands. He joined the Agency in I lth November 2004. He was
appointed Planning and Strategy Manager on I December 2018. His
main responsibilities as include; carrlng our pre-feasibility, feasibility
studies and designs for water and sewerage services, identification of
existing water sources, coverage and gaps to be taken inlo account in the
preparation of master plans, ensuring that demand analysis is canied out
to facilitate preparation of meaningful and relevant plans, ensuring
effective planning and implementation of approved work plans
associated with the area of assignment.

Ms. Pauline Wairimu Miriga - Human Resource Administration
Manager
Ms. Miriga holds a MBA degree (Human Resource Management) from
KEMU, a Bachelor of Business Administration (Entrepreneurship)
degree, a higher diploma in management from the Kenya Technical
Training Institute and a Diploma in Human Resource Management
from Kenya Institute of Management. She joined the Agency on 6th
February 2006. Her main responsibiliues include: Developing
departmental strategies. policies, and plans to facilitate achievement of
overall Agency's goals. Conduct recruitment, selection and induction of
staff, recommending appropriate deployment and placement of staff.
Developing and maintaining a conducive work environment for
attracting, retaining and motivating employees. Conducting training
and employee development programmes. Managing payroll, medical
and pension schemes, terminal benefits, staff welfare activities and
ensuring timely submission ol statutory deductions.

Mr. Vincent Mali Kachi - Internal Audit and Assurance Manager
Mr. Kachi holds a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration
(Accounting & Finance) from Kenya Methodist University (KEMU)
and prof'essional qualifications in Accounting (CPA). He is a member
of the Institute of Intemal Auditors (llA). He joined the Agency on I sr

May 2017. His main responsibilities include: Examination and
evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation's
govemance, risk management and internal process as well as the quality
of performance in carrying out assigned responsibilities to achieve the
organisation's stated goals and objectives. Other responsibilities
include: ensuring annual, medium and long-term audit plans are
prepared in line with the Agency's corporate goals and objectives,

xiiilt'age
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ensuring timely availability and implementation of approved Intemal
Audit strategies and ensuring that intemal audits are completed and
documented to the required standards.

Mr.James Karanja Ribiru - Procurement Manager

Mr. Ribiru holds an MBA degree (Procurement and Supply Chain
Management) from the University ol Nairobi, a Bachelor of Business
Management (Purchasing and Supplies) degree from Moi University,
Diploma I, II and III in Supplies management tiom Railway Training
Institute and Kenya Polytechnic and Certificates in the same field. He
joined the Agency on l'1 May 2017. His main responsibilities include:
Overseeing the overall management ofprocurement and supplies at the
Agency; processing tender documentation and applications; preparing
relevant progress and annual reports on the perfbrmance of the
Agency; preparing annual procuremenl plans in accordance with the
budget process; ensuring compliance with regulations, policies and
practices in the implementation of procurement activities; managing
the awarded contracts; Ensuring maintenance of optimal slock-levels
of supplies in tandem with the Agency's requirements; Performing
administrative duties within the department among others.

Mr. Joseph Karani Githinji -ICT Manager
Mr. Githinji holds a Bachelor of Science in Inlbrmation Systems

degree, and professional qualifications in Certified Information and

Communication Technology (CICT), Cisco Certified Network

Profession (CCNP) and Cisco Certified Network Associate (CCNA).

He joined the Agency on I 5th January 2010. His main responsibilities

include: Ensuring that hardware and software components of the

Agency's ICT systems are available and are properly installed and

maintainedl establishing and maintaining appropriate connectivity fbr
Agency networking, communications and other needs; manage web

operations, provide intemel support, allocate user righls and ensure

security of systems; liaise with extemal service providers for the

maintenance and support of the systems; advice management on the

computer resources requirements for the organization and oversee

performance management in ICT department.

xivlPage
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IV. CHAIRMAN'SSTATEMENT

INTRODUCTION

I am excited to present the annual report and financial statements for Tana Water Works

Developmenl Agency, lor the year ended 30th June 2019. The financial year 2018/2019 was

definitely a busy one for TWWDA given the demand by clients to complete our major projects that

were under implementation and to commence implementation of new projects including Kenya

Towns Sustainable Water Supply and Sanitation Programme funded by ADB and GoK in line with

1'WWDA Strategic Plan 2018-2022. The Agency shall continue engaging with a variety of
stakeholders including parent Ministry. Development Partners, County Govemment, Water Service

Providers, the Public and other State Agencies.

OVERVIEW OF OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

The water sector and other sectors of the economy in our region and the country in general have

experienced turbulent times due to the unfavourable weather conditions. Despite the consequences

of this unfavourable development that reduced and curtailed the operations in our region, leadership

at TWWDA and commitment 10 good corporate govemance by the Board Members and the

management ensured that the Agency sustained an upward growth in the year. Aggressive resource

mobilization ellorts had indeed a positive impact that resulted to completion and good progress in

several development projects, commissioning of new ones and proposals that have moved prefty

close to attracting substantial extemal lunding.

Tana Water Works Development Agency continued to seize opportunities and to address the

challenges to strengthen its position in line with its vision of being an innovative and Resourceful

institution in development ofbulk water and sanitation works.

ACHIEVEMENTS

During the period under review the Agency continued with its infrastructural programmes geared

towards increasing access to water and sanitation, which are key enablers of the Big 4 Agenda.

In 2018/2019 Financial Year, the Agency maintained active engagement with the already established

alliances with development partners to enhance resources mobilisation for expanding the water and

sanitation infrastructure to the un-served areas. Following successful implementation of previously

xvll'r:.
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ADB funded projects, TWWDA was charged with the responsibility by ADB to implement in

conjunction with Northem Waler Works Development Agency (NWWDA)

Under this, the Agency has commenced implementation of the following ADB lunded projects under

the Kenya Towns Sustainable Water Supply and Sanitation Programmes:

ln 201812019 Financial Year, the Agency through the support ol the Govemment of Kenya

implemented Thangatha Earth dam and Ndumuru dam;

CHALLENGES

The main challenge to the Agency is to obtain adequate funding to upgrade water and sanitation

infrastructures to ensure quality and sustainable service delivery. As reported in the previous years'

report, the Agency inherited water infrastructure fiom National Water Conservation and Pipeline

Corporation and the defunct Ministry of Water & Irrigation which were in a dilapidated state. This

has led to high Non-Revenue Water (NRW); low connections; and sub-optimal access to quality

water even in many areas that are sewiced by the existing systems. Other challenges identified

include: degraded catchment areas which ai'fect the quality and adequacy of water resources which is

further compounded by drought situation; numerous and unsustainable community water schemes

that are poorly managed, over -abstraction of water due to poor enlorcement of apportionment

regulations and polluted sources of waler.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

With the introduction of the fundamental changes brought about by the Constitution to the Water

and Sanitation Sector and the commencement of the Water Act 2016. The National Govemment

through the Water Works Development Agencies plays an important role of developing sustainable

National Water and Sanitation Public Works. This will enhance el'fectiveness of water and sanitation

sector by guaranteeing the right to water and obligating the Agency to ensure that every person has

access to safe and adequate quantities of water and a further right to reasonable standards of

sanitation as required by the Constitution.

The Agency shall also ensure the right to health and the right to a clean environment, proper and

effective sanitation services, this will contribute in the enabling ofthe Big 4 Agenda.

xvill)age
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board Members, I wish to appreciate the entire TWWDA team in their industrious

resolute towards the attainment of the largets set out in the 2018/19 performance contract. ln

addition, TWWDA has maintained ISO 9001:2015 certification by KEBS.

The Agency remains committed to providing the necessary leadership to facilitate continuous

improvement of TWWDA's operations. I remain confident that we have the skills and resources

necessary to manage the significant opportunities and challenges that lie ahead. May I atso take this

opportunity to thank all our stakeholders for their support without which our remarkable

performance would not have been achieved.

Finally, I sincerely thank the Govemment of Kenya, particularly the Ministry of water and

Sanitation. 'l'he National Treasury and Planning, our Development Partners, Water Services

Regulatory Authority., Water Service Providers and all other State Corporations under the Ministry

of Water and Sanitation for their guidance. continued support and co-operation.

CHAIRMAN:. DATE 2o' u6 - ec.t t
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V. REPORT OF THE CHIEF E,XECUTIVE OFFICER

INTRODUCTION

I am happy to report the continued growth in our operations and financial performance. The annual

report and financial statements as at 30 June 2019 are an indication ofa successful year. I am indeed

elated to be part ofthe team that delivered such results. We have relocused our strategic direction to

concentrale on our core business and enhanced capacities at all levels which has strengthened

management systems for continued service delivery to all our customers.

KEY ACTIVITIES

During the financial yer 201812019, the Agency made tremendous achievements in implementalion

of water and sanitation projects. Guided by the Agency's Strategic Plan (2018-2022), National

Water Master Plan 2030, Vision 2030, Big 4 Agenda and Water Act 2016 the Agency has prioritized

areas that require intervention, improvement and expansion of existing water and sanitation

infrastructures.

I. Completed key projects;

o Ndumuru dam;

The dam was funded by the Covemment of Kenya at a total cost of KES. 20,000,000. The dam's

design capacity is 140,000m3. The project targets to serve a population of4000 people

. Thangatha earth dam;

The dam was funded by the Govemment of Kenya at a total cost of KES. 31,815,740. The dam's
design capacity is 50,000m3 with a target population to be served of 10,000 people.

il. Project under implementation

i. African Development Bank (ADB) Funded Projects under Kenya Towns Sustainable

Water Supply and Sanitation Programmes

The National Treasury secured a loan iiom ADB and on lent KES.l0.998.l 56,567 to

TWWDA. Following successful implementation of previously ADB f'unded projects

TWWDA was charged with the responsibility by ADB to implement in conjunction with

Northern Water Works Development Agency (NWWDA) project in the NWWDA area of
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jurisdiction. The loan amount for TWWDA is KES. 5,689,093,088 and for NWWDA is KES.

5,309,063,479

The following are the ongoing projects in TWWDA area ofjurisdiction:

o Chuka Water Supply Infrastructure

o Chuka Sewerage Infrastructure

o Chogoria Water Supply Infrastructure

o Chogoria Sewerage Infrastructure;

o Kerugoya -Kutus Water Supply Infrastructure

o Kerugoya- Kutus Sewerage Infrastructure

o Meru Sewerage Infrastructure;

. Murang'a Urban Water Supply Infrastructure - Last mile connectivity

o Murang'a South Water Supply Infrastructure - Last mile connectivity

o Othaya Sewerage Infrastructure - Last mile connectivity

The following are the ongoing projects in NWWDA area ofjurisdiction :

. Marsabit Water Supply Infrastructure,

o MarsabitSeweragelnfrastructure,

o Mandera Water Supply Infrastructure,

o Mandera Sewerage lnfrastructure,

o Carissa Town Water Supply and Sewerage lnfrastructure - Last mile

connectivity, and

. Isiolo Town Water Supply and Sewerage lnfrastructure - Last mile

connectivity.

In addition, the funding by ADB has the lollowing components for the two Agencies;

. Procurement of eight exhauster,

o Procurement of Enterprise Resource Planner (ERP) software,

r Capacity Building of project area WSPs and WWDA Staff,

. Procurement of Billing software and hardware,

. Procurement of Water Meters.

o Construction of Laboratories and Laboratory equipment,

. Procurement of Equipment for NRW Management,
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. Procurement of Equipment for Sewer Maintenance, and

o Procurement of Vehicles.

ii. GoK funded Projects

. Kianjuri dam

The dam was funded by the Govemment of Kenya at a total cost of KES' 74,1I I'138. The

dam's design capacity is 300,000m3. The project targets to serve a population ol 55,000

people.
r Ura 4 Dam

The dam was funded by the Government of Kenya at a total cost of KES. 58,271,400. The

dam's design capacity is 100,000m3 with a target population to be served of54,000 people.

. Rehabilitation of Mukurwe-ini Water Project

This included rehabilitation ofexisting dilapidated water systems.

In addition, the Govemment provided a grant of KES. 226 million for the following

programmes

a) Rehabilitation of Water Supply Infrastructure - KES. l45Million

The following are the Projects earmarked for rehabilitation

o Kamwene Water Project

o Mwichiuri Water Project

. Ndigia Water Project

o Sisi Kwa Sisi Water Project

o Wahundura/Kiringu Water Project

o Miathene Boys' High Sch. B/H

b) Water for Schools Programme - KES. 34 Million

The following are the Schools earmarked for drilling and equipping ofboreholes;

o Kambaru Pry Sch Borehole

o lgumori Pry Sch Borehole

. Gatuanyaga Sec Sch Borehole

e Kambi Pry Sch Borehole

r Rukenya Pry Sch Borehole

. Miathene High Sch Borehole
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o lriaini Pry Sch Borehole

o Muthiga Pry Sch Borehole

o Mihango Pry Sch Borehole .

o Ammuka S.H

. Matanya Girls Sec Sch Borehole

. Gakuani Pry Sch Borehole

o Gatitu Secondary School Borehole

o Gakarati Pry Sch Borehole

The Agency continued to adopt Perlormance Contract Management Approach in line with the

Govemment Relbrms initiatives. During the financial year, the Agency signed a performance

contract with the Ministry of Water and Sanitation for implementation and cascaded the set targets to

Heads ol Departments/Divisions. This approach improved the utilization of the available resources

leading to better service delivery and better value for money in the Agency activities.

In the financial year 2018/19 the Agency had a deficit of KES. 294,172,200, which is attributed to

depreciation and provisions for bad debt. TWWDA had an absorption rate of 9l%o of allocated funds

and a project completion rate of 'l l% due to delay in release ofallocated funds.

SUCCESS

During 2018/2019 financial year, the Agency continued to maintain constructive engagements with

Development Partners and Stakeholders to support the rehabilitation and augmentation of the

existing water services infrastructure and to initiate new schemes to increase coverage in tine the

Kenya Vision 2030 and Big Four Agenda.

xxill'lrlc

c) Drought Mitigation Initiatives - KES. 47 Million

In an effort to mitigate against drought, the agency has programmed to utilize the grants in drilling

boreholes. water trucking, construction of water pans and small dams in the lulnerable areas.
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The maintaining of the ISO 9001:2015 is a testimony that TWWDA has continued to embrace

intemational best practices for efficiency in service delivery and customer satisfaction through

provision of quality services and continual improvement. The Agency members are well aware that

it has been a long joumey that started way back in 2007, but with determination and hard work, all

our efforts have not been in vain. I shall provide the necessary support to the management to ensure

continual improvement in service delivery, process re-engineering, customer focus, leadership and

staff involvement. To support these initiatives, I shall ensure availability of required resources for

maintenance and improvement of TWWDA's QMS.

I remain committed to provide the necessary leadership to facilitate continual improvement ol

TWWDA's operations. Am confident that we have the skills and resources necessary to manage the

significant opportunities and challenges that lie ahead. May I also take this opportunity to thank all

our stakeholders for their support without which our remarkable performance would not have been

achieved. We are indeed extremely grateful to all stakeholders for their support towards the

continued implementation of TWWDA Strategic Plan 2018-2022.

Finally, I sincerely thank the Govemment of Kenya, panicularly the Ministry of Water and

Sanitation, The National Treasury and Planning, our Development Partners, Water Services

Regulatory Authority, Water Service Providers and all other State Corporations under the Ministry

of Water and Sanitation for their guidance, continued support and co-operation.

CHALLENGES

The main challenges that the Agency experienced include;

i. Inadequate funding

. AIA

During the hnancial year TWWDA had a proposed budget of KES 3.5 billion for

AIA. However only KES 1,825,000,000 was allocated.

o Counterpart Funds

During the financial year TWWDA had a proposed budget of KES 650 million for

counterpart funding however only KES 100 mitlion was allocated.

o Development Grant
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a

During the financial year, TWWDA had a proposed budget of KES I,295,500,000 for

implementation of capital works however only KES 226 million was allocated.

Recurrent Grant

During the financial year, TWWDA had a proposed budget of KES 208,269,000 as

recurrent grant however only KES 78,400,000 was allocated.

Delays in disbursement of the allocated funds leading to delay in honouring commitments

and obligations which can lead to the public losing confidence with the Agency.

o Counterpart funding

During the financial year 201812019 TWWDA was allocated KES 100 million for

counterpart funding however, only KES 75 million was received as follows;

i I 'r Allocation KES 25 million - I 8s October 201 8

i 2nd Allocation KES 25 million - 28s December 2018

> 3'd Allocation KES 25 million - 27s June 2019

o Development grant

TWWDA was allocated KES 226 million lor implementation of Water and

Sanitation works as lollowsl

> TWWDA was allocated KES. 145 Million for Rehabilitation of Water Supply

however only KES 108,750.000 was received as follows;

* lstAllocation KES 36.25 million - lSth October 2018

..'. 2nd Allocation KES 36.25 million - 28th December 201 8

.t 3'd Allocation KES 36.25 million - 27th June 2019

i Water for Schools Programme was allocated KES. 54 Million the Agency

advertised and awarded contracts for the allocated funds. However, in the

supplementary 2 budget the amount was reduced to KES 34 million in addition

only KES 27 million was received on l4th January 2019

i Drought Mitigation Initiatives was allocated KES. 47 Million which was

received on 26th June 2019

o Recurrent grant

During the financial yeN 201812019 TWWDA was allocated KES 78,400,000

however only KES 77,600,000 was received as at the end ofJune 30, 2019.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

There are on-going efforts to (re)align laws and policies within the Agency to be in line with the

C,rnstitution of Kenya order and the Water Act 2016. While there is a general process of

inrplementation of the devolved system of government, there will be a sector-specific approach to

the implementation process. In the water and sanitation sector, the pre-2010 sector reforms form the

basis of the implementation of devolved system of Govemment. The Agency will strive to save the

benefits hamessed from earlier sector reforms while conforming to the current Constitutional

requirements relevant to the sector.

E ng. John . Mbogori
Ag. CHIEF EXECUTM OFFICER DATE:...2 -oX-wl

iii. Transitionalchallenges

As a result of provision of water services being a devolved function, there has been non

remittance of Board Administrative Cost Fees which has continued to impacted

negatively on the Agency's operations.

iv. Appointment of Board Members

During the FY 20 I 8/2019 the Board member's terms expired on l'r October 201 8. The Chair

to the Board and the Board Members were appointed on 7'h February 2019 however they

resumed office on I 0'h May 201 9 when the Water Works Development Agencies were

inaugurated at Ministry of Water and Sanitation Headquarters. This delay posed a challenge

in key resolutions of the Board.

The Agency shall continue engaging the Ministry of Water and Sanitation and other relevant

stakeholders in addressing these challenges.

xxivlPage



Tana Waler Works Development Agencv
Annual Report And Finsncirl Statements
For The Year Ended 30 June 2019

VI. CORPORATECO\/ERNANCESTATEMENT

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE
All the six independent Board Members were appornted on 7'h February 2019 vide Gazette Notice

No. 1247 and the Water Works Development Agencies was established under section 65 of the

Water Act 2016 vide legal notice no.27 of 26tn February 2019. There was an inauguration ceremony

of the Water Works Development Agencies on [0'h May 2019 at Ministry headquarters followed by

an induction of Board Members by the Ministry of Water and Sanitation on 23'd - 256 May 20 I 9.

In view ofthe above, it was not possible to have the four (4) mandatory meeting during the Financial

Year. However, there was a Board Members introductory meeting on 4th June 2019 at the TWWDA

Board room followed by an induction training on Mwongozo Code of Govemance by State

Corporation Advisory Commiuee (SCAC) from 24th to 26th June 201 9.

SUCCESSION PLAN

ln accordance with section 66 (l) of the Water Act,20l6 the appointing authority of the Agency's

Chairperson to the Board and Board Member is the Cabinet Secretary for Water and Sanitation. [n

this regard, the Agency has no control over the succession planning of the Board Members.

However, the management notifies the appornting authority six months prior to the Board Members'

time of retirement. The Agency has a policy on succession planning for the CEO, Sentor

Management and Staff.

BOARD CHARTER

The Board has an approved Board charter which is also uploaded in the Agency's website. As part

of the induction programme, newly appointed Board members are inducted on the contents of the

charter.

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF BOARD MEMBERS

ln accordance with section 66 ( I ) of the Water Act, 201 6 the Cabinet Secretary Ministry of Water

and Sanitation shall appoint the Chairman of the Board and Board Members. A Board Member's

term can be terminated if;

. Serves the Cabinet Secretary with a written notice ofresignation; or

o Is absent, without the permission ofthe chair person for three consecutive meetings; or
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ls convicted ofan offence and sentenced to imprisonment for a term exceeding six months or

to a fine exceeding two thousand shillings; or

Is incapacitated by prolonged physical or mental illness liom performing his duties as a

member of the Board; or

Conducts himself in a manner deemed by the Cabinet Secretary to be inconsistent with

membership of the Board.

ROLE AND FUNCTION OF THE BOARD

The functions of the Board are to

a

l.

ii.
iii.
iv.

vlt.

Determine TWWDA's mission, vision, purpose and core values;

Review, evaluate and approve, on a regular basis, long-term plans for TWWDA;

Review, evaluate and approve TWWDA's budget and linancial forecasts;

Review and approve the operating and financial results of TwWDA;
Ensure effective, accurate, timely and transparent disclosure olpertinent information on

TWWDA's operations and performance;

Review, evaluate and approve the overall organizational structure, the assignment of
senior management responsibilities and plans for senior management development and

succession;

Review, evaluale and approve the remuneration structure of TWWDA;

INDUCTION AND TRAINING

The Agency has an induction progr.rmme for newly appointed Board members. When appointed,

Board members are provided with an effective induction programme in order to familiarize them

with their responsibilities as Board members, general principles of govemance and Board practices.

The induction progrnmme also provide the Board member with an orientation of the Agency,

strategic plans, financial status and policies, risk management, compliance programmes and the

Code of Conduct and Ethics and applicable policies.The induction shall entail meetings with senior

management and visits to TWWDA'S water infrastructure facilities.

There was an inauguration ceremony of the Water Works Development Agencies on lOth May 2019

at Ministry headquarters followed by an induction of Board Members by the Ministry of Water and

Sanitation on 23'd - 25th May 2019 and thereafter, an induction training on Mwongozo code of

Govemance by State Corporation Advisory Committee (SCAC) from 24rh to 26th June 2019.
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BOARD MEMBERS PERFORMANCE

The Mwongozo code of Govemance requires the performance of Board Members of State

Corporations to be evaluated by SCAC at the end of every year of service. The Agency complies

with this requirement and a performance evaluation is carried out in conjunction with SCAC for the

Board, individual Board Member, Chairperson and CEO.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Board members are required to avoid conflict of interest between their private activities and their

part as Board Members in the conduct of the business ofthe Agency as specifically provided in the

code of conduct and Ethics and the Mwongozo Code of Govemance. In this regard, the Agency

maintains conflict ol interest registers which Board Members declare any conflict of interest before

commencement of all meetings.

BOARD REMUNERATION

The remunerations of Board Members are based on circulars issued by the State Corporation

Advisory committee from time to time. The remuneration include; sitting allowance,

accommodation allowance. lunch allowance, mileage allowance, chairman honoraria and airtime

allowance. The allowances are subject to the applicable income tax laws. In addition, the

independent Board Members have an insurance cover which include Medical cover, Group Personal

Accident and Last Expense

ETHICS AND CONDUCT

Board members have a duty to act ethically at all times and in accordance with the Board Charter

and in line with their liduciary duty to act honestly and in the best interests of TWWDA. Towards

this end, all the Board Members signed a Code of Conduct and Ethics in line with the Mwongozo

Code of Covemance.

GOVERNANCE AUDIT

The Mwongozo code of Govemance requires SCAC in conjunction with the Institute of Cedfied

Secretaries (lCS) to conduct Govemance Audit on an annual basis. The Agency has complied with

the provision of the Mwongozo Code of Govemance lor State Corporations

xxviill'agc

Tana Water Works Developme nt Agency
Annual Report Asd Financial Statemenls
For The Year Ended 30 June 20t9



Tana Wster Works Development Age[cy
Annual Report Aod Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 30 June 2019

VII^ MANACEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Agency's Operational and Financial Performance

The Agency continued to adopt Performance Contract Management Approach in line with the

Govemment Reforms initiatives. This approach improved the utilization of available resources

leading to better service delivery and betler value for money in the Agency activities.

In addition, during 2018/2019 financial year. the Agency has continued to maintain constructive

engagements with Development Partners and Stakeholders to support the rehabilitation and

augmentation of the existing water and Sewerage services infrastructure and to initiate new schemes

to increase coverage in line with Vision 2030.

Asset growth for year 2078/79
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Revenue Vs Expenditure 2Ot8/t9

386,328,s21

. Revenue Expenses

The increase in expenses is attributed lo increose in depreciotion due to capitalization of
compleled projects

Entity's compliance with statutory requirements
Tana Water Works Development Agency is compliant to its statutory obligations. These include:

PAYE and Withholding tax. NHIF. NSSF. Loan deductions and Pension zrmong others. As at 30

June 2019, all statutory deductions had been remitted to the relevant bodies.

Key projects and investment decisions TWWDA is planning /implementing
Tana Water Works Developmenl Agency. guided by its Strategic Plan 2018-2022, has prioritized

areas that require intervention, improvement and expansion of existing water and Sanitation

infrastructure.

In the Financial Year 2018/2019 the Agency maintained active engagement with the already

established allianoes with development partners to enhance resource mobilization for expanding the

water and sanitation infiastructure to the un-served areas. The Agency has commenced

implementation ol Kerugoya-Kutus water and Sewerage Infrastructure, Chuka water Supply and

Sewerage Infrastructure. chogoria water and Sewerage Infrastructure and Meru sewerage

Infrastructure.
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Major risks facing TWWDA
In undertaking its activities, TWWDA is exposed to risks in terms of threats and potential loss of

opportunities which can affect its operations. Several risks were identified and their mitigation

measures considered. The Agency maintains risk registers which are monitored and reviewed from

time to time.

The Agency's risk management strategy recognizes the various risks the Agency is exposed to

including operational risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and political risk. This is based on a clear

understanding of the risk and the continuous risk assessment, measurement and monitoring.
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ln addition TWWDA in conjunction with NWWDA is implementing Marsabit Water Supply and

Sanitation Infrastructure, Mandera Water Supply and Sanitation Infrastructure, Garissa Town Water

Supply and Sewerage Infrastructure and Isiolo Town Water Supply and Sewerage Infrastructure.

In the Financial Y ear 201812019, the National Govemment has provided budgetary allocations to

support construction ofthe following programmes and projects;

o Rehabilitation of Water Supply Infrastructure

. Water for Schools Programme

r Drought Intervention Programme

Operational Risk
Operational risk is the exposure to the Agency that could arise as a result of failure or deficiencies

related to system, process and people. To mitigate the operational risk the Agency has strengthened

the intemal systems and processes, slrenglhen stalf capacity, insurance against the risks and has

disaster management plan.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the borrower is unable to meet his financial obligations to the lender. The

Agency's credit risk is attributable to its cash and cash equivalent and trade receivable.

Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash to meet the Agency's

obligations. The Agency manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves to ensure

liabilities are paid as they fall due and to cushion against any liquidity risk.
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Material arrears in statutory/financial obligations
The Agency had pending bills amounting to KuS. 500,000.000 as at rhe end of financial year
2018/2019.'l'hc Agency has engaged the relevant stakeholders to settle the pcnding bills to be
compliant with the presidential directive dated I't June 2019

The entity's Iinancial probity and serious governance issues
'I'hcre were no financial improbity and governance issues reporte<t during the financial year

2018t2019.

VIII. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

IX. REPORT OF THT] I}OARD MEMBT]RS

The Board Members submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year

ended June 30, 2019 which show the state ofthe Agency's affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activities ofthe Agency continue to be;-

l. Undertake the development. maintenance and management of the national public waterworks

within its area ofjurisdiction;

2. Operate the waterworks and provide water services as a water service provider, until such a time

as responsibility for the operation and management of the waterworks are handed over to a

xxxi I I'ir r.l c

The Agency acknowledges its responsibility to society in its capacity as a corporare citizen.

Consequently. it endeavours to play an active role in national and regional matters as per its mandate

besides contributing to various worthy causes. In the financial year under review, the Agency

continued to of'fer technical advice and support to different stakeholders in the water sector,

particularly the county govemments to facilitate access to safe and clean water in adequate

quantities.

In line with the constitution, and the Presidential directive the Agency planted 7000 indigenous lrees

in Kangaita fbrest station in Kirinyaga County to increase the tree forest cover to ensure sustainable

source olwater for the projects being implemented in Kirinyaga County.

TWWDA conducted a sensitization workshop on prevention of HIV/AIDS infection and wellness

and Disability Mainstreaming on 30th January 2019 and l6'h May 2019 respectively for all rwwDA
stafl. WSPs stalT and County Govemment staffwithin the Agency's area ofjurisdiction
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county govemment, joint committee, authority of county govemments or water services provider

within whose area ofjurisdiction or supply the waterworks is located;

3. Provide reserve capacity for purposes of providing water services where the Regulatory Board

orders the transfer of water services functions from a defaulting water services provider to

another licensee;

4. Provide technical services and capacity building to such county govemments and water services

providers within its area as may be requested; and

5. Provtde to the Cabinet Secretary technical support in the discharge of his or her functions.

Results

The results of the entity for the year ended June 30.2019 are set out on page l.

Board Members

The members of the Board who served during the year are on page viii to xi. During the Financial

Year, four Board Members' terms expired, the Chairperson of the Board and five independent Board

Members were appointed to the Board with effect from on 7'h February 2019 vide gazette notice No.

1247. However, TWWDA was legally formed on 26th April 2019 vide legal notice No. 27.

Dividends/Surplus remission

TWWDA is a non-commercial semi-autonomous govemment entity and therefore did not make any

surplus during the FY 2018/2019 hence there was no remittance to the Consolidated Fund.

Auditors

The office of the Auditor Ceneral is responsible for the statutory audit of the Agency in accordance

with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act,20l5.

By Order of ard

Eng. Jo gon

Ag. Chief E cu tive Officer

oate:....29.:.!l?.:.11?.1:1
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X. STATEMENTOFBOARDMEMBERS' RESPONSIBILITIES
Section 8l of the Public Finance Management Act,2012 and Section l4 of the State Corporatrons

Act, require the Board Members to prepare financial statements in respect ofthe Board, which give a

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Agency at the end of the financial year and the

operating results of the Agency for that year. The Board Members are also required to ensure that the

Agency keeps proper accountrng records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial
position of the Agency. The Board Members are also responsible for safeguardrng the assets of the

Agency.

The Board Members are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Agency's financial

statements, which give a true and fair view ofthe state of affairs ofthe Agency for and as at the end of
the financial year ended on June 30, 2019. This responsibrlity includes:

(i) Maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these

continue to be effective throughout the reporting period;

(ii) Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any

time the financial position ofthe entity;
(iii) Desrgning, implementing and maintaining rnternal controls relevant to the preparation

and fair presentation of the financral statements, and ensuring that they are free from
material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud;

(iv) Safeguarding the assets of the agency;

(v) Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

(vi) Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board Members accept responsibility for the Agency's financial statements, which have been

prepared using appropnate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and

estimates, in conformity with Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the

manner required by the PFM Act 20l2and the State Corporations Act. The Board Members are of the

opinion that the Agency's financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of Agency's
transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2019, and ofthe Agency's financial position as at

that date. The Board Members further confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained
for the Agency, which have been relied upon in the preparation ofthe Agency's financial statements

as well as the adequacy of the systems of intemal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Board Members to indicate that the Agency will not remain a
going concem for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.
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Approval of the financial statements

The Agency's financial statements were approved by the Board on
signed on ir behalf by:

Lir
2019 and

Board Member
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.6El{ERAL
llthnn( Dr! 1 t t, t un hth t I ttl'

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON TANA WATER WORKS
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (FORMERLY TANA WATER SERVICES BOARD) FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2019

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tana Water Works
Development Agency (formerly Tana Water Services Board) set out on pages 1 to 33,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June, 20'19, and the
statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of
cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of
Kenya and Section 35 of the PublicAuditAct, 2015. I have obtained all the information
and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for
the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Tana Water Works Development Agency as at
30 June, 2019 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and comply with the Public Finance Management Acl, 2012 and the Water Act,
2016.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

't.0 lnaccuracies in the Statement of Financial Position

The statement of financial position reflects total assets of Kshs.8,493,418,09"1 against
total liabilities of Kshs.4,341 ,071,694 leading to an unreconciled and unexplained
variance of Kshs.4,152,346,397 as at 30 June, 2019.

Consequently, the statement of financial position is not fairly presented
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2.0 lnaccuracies in Property, ptant and Equipment

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 21A to the financial
statements reflects non+urrent assets balance of Kshs.g,047,503,905 as at
30 June, 2019. However, the following inaccuracies were noted: -

i. Jhe Agency inherited non-current assets from the Ministry of water and
lrrigation and National water conservation and pipeline coiporation. These
included land and building (Maji House Nyeri), water and sewerage
infrastructure assets of unknown value spread within the Agency's area 

-of

operation, fifteen motor vehicles and various District water offices of unknown
value. The inherited assets have not been incorporated in the Boards financial
statements for the year ended 30 June, 2019.

ii rhe motor vehicres' net book value of Kshs.g,752,191 as at 30 June, 2019
includes the value of four motor vehicles still bearing GK registration numbers
which have not been transferred and registered in the Agenry's name. Further,
the motor vehicles' net book value excludes seven grounded vehicles of
unknown values and which have not been used by the Agency for several
years. No explanation was provided for failure to include theie motor vehicles
in the assets register and financial statements.

iii. The balance includes an amount of Kshs.26,252,205 in respect of Kiambere-
Mwingi water supply Project which is under the jurisdiction of ranathi water
works Development Agency but whose initial development cost was borne by
Tana water services Board. The Agency continues to reflect as assets the cost
of these assets in its books. Management did not provide evidence of transfer
or the project assets from Tana water works Development Agency to Tanathi
Water Works Development Agency for audit verification.

iv. The Agency completed the construction of Kiawaiguru water tank project in the
201512016 financial year. However, audit review revealed that though the land
upon which the tank was built was voruntarily given to Tana witer works
Development Agency, the Agency is yet to obtain ownership tifle deed for the
land.

consequ.ently, the accuracy, completeness, valuation and ownership of the property,
plant and equipment balance of Kshs.8,047,SO3,SOS as at 30 June, iOt S codE ;ot Ue
confirmed.

3.0 Long Outstanding Board Administrative Fees

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in in Note 1g to the financial
statements reflects receivables from non-exchange transactions balance of
Kshs.344,725,48'1. tnctuded in this batance is (shs.34O,StOZO7,"f"ting to
outstanding board administrative fees from various water service providers diting



back to 2016. Management has not demonstrated efforts made to recover the
receivables.

Consequently, the accuracy and fair statement of the receivables from non-exchange
transactions balance of Kshs.344,725,481 as at 30 June, 2019 could not be confirmed
and the recoverability of the receivables is in doubt.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Tana Water Works Development
Agency Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with
other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in
Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
slgnificance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters
to report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) ot the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Lawfulness and
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not
been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

Non-Compliance with Law on Ethnic Composition

Review of human resource records revealed that the Agency had seventy-seven
employees out of which twenty-seven employees were on secondment from the
Ministry of Water and the County Government of Nyeri. it was noted that sixty six
percent (66%) of the employees were from one dominant ethnic community. This
was contrary to Section 7(2) of the National Cohesion and lntegration Act, 2008 which
provides that all public offices shall seek to represent the diversity of the people of
Kenya in employment of staff and that no public institution shall have more than one
third of its slaff establishment from the same ethnic community.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that
I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
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financial statements comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern
them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conc lusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, lconfirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me
to believe that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The
standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Agency's ability to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Agency or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act,2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
are in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources
are applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Agency's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors
compliance with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that
effective processes and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities
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in relation to governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and
effectiveness of the control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the
provisions of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in
compliance with Article 229(7) ol the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
lSSAls will always detect a material misstatement and weakness when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
are in compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are
applied in an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the
Constitution and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of lhe
Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the
effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and
systems in accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act,
2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.
My consideration of the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material
weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation
to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of noncompliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also.

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
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those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Agency's ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, lam required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my audit report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Agency to cease to continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

a

a Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Agency to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances

lcommunicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

CPA N , CBS

Na irobi

11 January,2022

I
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Tans Water Works Dev€lopment Agency

Annusl Report 8nd Financisl Statements

l'or the Yesr Ended June 2019

xI
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 20I9

The notes set out on pages 8 to 35 form an integral part ofthese Financial Statements

* l.-inunc'e cosls relales lo Bunk c'ho'ges

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Notes 2018/2019 20t7120t8

Kshs Kshs

Board's Administrative Cost fee 6 2,774,598 |,707,699

Govemment Grants 7 87,328,496 67,428,972

90, r 03,094 69,136,671

Revenue from exchange transactions
Finance Income - extemal investments

Other lncome 8 2,581 ,990 4.978,962

2,581 ,990 4,978,962

Total revenue 92,685,084 74,1 15,633

Expenses

Use of Coods & Services 9 2,794,010 3.096.452

Employee Costs l0 55,I 50,81 7 52,281.403

Remuneration of Directors ll 7,166,405 8,666,885

Depreciation and Amortization expense t2 170,886,789 t50,754,054

Repairs and Maintenance l3 5,294,6t32 9,790,I 85

Contracted Services 1.1 922,29'.7 2,826,348

General Expenses 15 143,426,459 203,123,59 r

Finance Costs* l6 13t,822 263,t9
Total expenses 385,773,281 430,802,037

Su rplus/(deficit) for the period - Note 4 (h) & Annex IV (293,088, r97) (3s6,686,.r0.1)

Attributable to

S urp lus/(deficit) attributable to minority interest

Surplus/(deficit) attributable to owners of the

controlling entity 29
(293,088,l e7) (356,686,404)

(293,088,197) (356,686,404)

1
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Annu.l Report .nd Fin.nci.l Strtements
For the Yerr Ended June 2019

x t

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2OI9

Assets

Currcnt assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions
Inventories

Prepayrnents

Non-Currenl Assels
Property, Plant and Equipment
Work In Progress

Non-Current liabilities
Borrowings - ADF Loan
Bonowings - ADB Loan

'I'otal l,iabilities

Net Assets

Reserves

Accumulated Fund

ADB Loan repayment Fund
'fotal Net Assets end Lisbilities

'l'he 
I- inancial ls set out on pages I

Ag. Chief tive 0fficer do

Notes
t7
l8
l9
20

2lA
22

24(a)

24(b)

20t8t2019
Kshs
01 0)1 \a)

344,582,481

177 ,224
3,227 ,039

445,9t4,286

6,578,696,303
1,468,807,s02

402,203,362

5.7 16.064.232
I,507.255 I 4.1

'7,223,3t9,3768,047.503,805

Total Ass€ts

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables fiom Exchange Transactio 23 69,290,s56

69,290,556

3,373,390,407
898,390,731

14,629,77 6

14,629,776

3 ,37 3,390,407
190,896, 105

4,271,781,,t38 3,564,286,5 t 2

4,341,071,694 3,578.9t6.288

26

27

28

4,152,346,397
5, t68.385,1 l3

( l ,01 8.39 r ,056)

4,046,606,450
4,770,635, t l3

(726,382,7 88)
2,354,125,)

AK Membe r mber:.1164

o"t"....?9.:ff:P.!f1... r,rt"..}9.*.7.:..?2!.1

-152 -140

4Js2346,397 4.046,606450

Board Members by:

Chairman
Name: Dr. Muthoni P. Nkoroi

I)al c ^o? ^ ?or

il

Name : N.Mn kc

1

werc sl

2

20t7 t2018
Kshs

36,976.424
361,5'16.244

304,5 5 5

3,346,139

t1,493,.118,091 7,625,522,7.18
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Annual Report and Finrncisl Statemerlts
For the Year Ended June 2019

Accumulated
surplus

Capital Reserves
ADB Loan

Repayment Fund
-l 

ot al

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Ar July l,2017 (368,197,2e3) .1..199,635,r l3 .1,I3 I,437,820

Surplus/(deficit) for the period (356,686.404) (3s6,686,404)

Transfers to/from accumulated

surplus - Gratuity
2,338,609 2.3 3 8,609

ADB (WSBSP) Loan 2,354,125 2.354.t25

Payment during the year -

Gratuity
(3,837.700) (3.837,700)

Capital Reserves 271,000,000 271,000,000

At Ju ne 30, 2018 (726,382,788) 4.770,635,1l3 2,354,125 4,046,606,450

Surplus/(deficit) for the period (293,088,197) (293,088, 197)

Transfers to/from accumulated

surplus - Gratuity
2.607.844 2.607.844

ADB (WSBSP) Loan ( l ,78s) ( l ,78s)

Payment during the year -

Gratuity
( r,527,91 5) ( l ,527,91 5)

Capital Reserves -397.750,000 397.750,000

At Ju ne 30, 2019 ( r,018,3er,056) s,168,385,r l3 2,352,3,10 4,,152,346,397

3
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Tana Wster Works Developmellt Agency
Annusl Report and Fin8ncisl Stslements
For the Year Ended June 2019

XV

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 20I9

2017 t2018Notes 20t8t20t9
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts

2,77 4,598 1,707,6996Board's Administrative Costs Fee
6'?,428,9727 87,328,496Government Grants
4,978,962t{ 2,581,990Other Income

92,685,084 74,1 I5,633Total Reccipts
Payments

3,096,452t) 2,794,0t0Use of Coods and Services
52,28t,4035 5,1 50,8 1 7l0Employee Costs
8,666,885ll 7. 166,.105Remuneration to Directors

t50,754,054I 70,886,789t2Depreciation and Amortization Expense
9,790,185ll 5,294,682Repairs and Maintenance
2,826,348922,297Contracted Services

203,t23,59tl5 143,426,459General Expenses
263,19l6 131.822Finance Costs

430,802,037385,773,281Total Payments
(356,6E6,404)(293,088, r 97)Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year

( r 76,270,0s4)25 (50,300,434)Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

( 1,033,5 18,860) (360,249,897)2lAPurchase of Property, Plant, Equipment and

lntangible Assets
(231,043,284)38,447,642Work In Progress
(se r,293,181)(995,07 r,21 8)Net Cash Flows used in lnl'esting Aclivities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
190,896,10524 707,494,626Loan- ADB Kenya Towns Sustainable wS & SP

18,550Interest on ADB Loan Repayment Fund
( r ,784) ? 115 5752tiADB (WSBSP) Loan Account receipts

( 1,499,091)27 1.079.929Gratuitv
27 1,000,000)6 397,750,000Capital Reserves
462,75 t,1391,106,322,770Net Cash Flows used in Financing Activities

(304,812,097)60,951,1l8Net I ncrease/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equ ivalen ts
341,788,52tl1 36,976,424Cash and Cash Equivalents at I July 201 8

97,927,542 36,976,424l7Cash and Cash Equivalcnts at 30 June 2019

I
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Tana Water Works Development Agency
Anrlual Report and Finrnci.l Statemerts
For the Year Ended June 2019

xvt
STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDCET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2OI9

ErplsnatioD of Performance Difference Noaes

by lhe Agency since watcrProvision is a dcvolved function. In addtion, County Covemments directed WSPS not to remit Board Adminisrrative Cost Fee.

and render sales.

rcponing period

5

Original
tludget

Adjustments Finel budget
Actusl on

comparable basis

Performance
difference

Performance
differenceTo

Perlormonce
dwrence Noles

20r8-2019 2018-2019 2018-2019 2018-2019 2018-2019

Revenuc Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Board's Administrative Cost fee 21,178,000 2t,178,000 (5,41 3,933 ) -26% Note 1

Govemment Recunent Grants 89.728.496 ( I,600,000) 88, r 28.496 87,128,496 (800,000) -l%
Other Income t.550.000 I,550,000 2.581 .990 I.031.990 670k Note 2
Total I ncome I12,,156,.196 (r,600,000) I t 0,856.496 105.674.553 (5,r 8r,943)

Expenses

Employee costs 63,337,000 63.337,000 55, r 50,81 7 8, 1 86,1 83 t3% Note i
Board Expenses 21,157,000 2l,157,000 7,166,405 13.990.595 66,J4 Note 4

Operating/Administrative Expenses 80.494.000 80,494,000 80.363.4 t 2 r30.s88 0%
Repairs and Maintenance 2.194.000 2, r 94,000 2,094.682 99.3 t8 5%
Finance Costs - Bank Charges s20.000 520,000 t31,8?2 388, r 78 Note 5

Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts I.92 5.804 (1,92 5,804 ) 09.,o Note 6

ADB Kenya Towns Sustainable Water

Supply and Sanitation
55.285.401 5 5,285.403 35,897, t 55 19.388,248 35./" Note 7

Drought Mitigation 47,000,000 47,000,000 30. r 56,394 16,841,606 3670 Note I
Total Expenditure 269.987.,101 269,987,,10-1 2 t 4,886,491 s5.r00.912

Surplus for th€ period (r57,s30,907) ( r,600,000) (r s9,130,907) (109,21r,938)

| 5,',l64,06'7



TANA WATER WORKS DEVELOPMENT.ACENCY ANNUAT, REPORT.4ND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED ]O JUNE 20I9

rerms expiring on lst Octber 2018- ln addition, lhc currenl Board memters wcre appointed on 7th Fcb 2019.

K-Es ( I,670,469).

lvorc 7. The performance d fference of(+) 35olo is as a result ofdelay in release ofallocaled funds

Nota E.' Tle performance difference of(+) 167o is as a resull ofdelay in release ofallocalcd funds
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Annual Repora aIld FiIlancial Statements
For the Year Endcd 30 June 2019

XVII. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Tana Water Works Development Agency (TWWDA) formerly Tana Water Services Board (TWSB)

was established under section 65 of the Water Act 2016 vide legal notice no. 27 of 26th April 20l9.The

Agency is a state corporation currently under the Ministry of Water & Sanitation.

The Agency's principal activity is to develop sustainable National Water and Sanitation Public Works

within our area ofjurisdiction that enhances socio-economic growth for our stakeholders.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement at re-

valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment at fair value, impaired assets at their

estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The

preparation of financial statements in conformity with lntemationat Public Sector Accounting Standards

(IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise

judgement in the process of applying the Agency's accounting policies. The financial statements have

been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the functional and repo(ing currency of the

Agency.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State Corporations

Act and lntemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted

have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS
The agency did not adopt revised/new/amendments standards effective for the year ended 30

June 2019 this was because the chances to the standard will have no impact on the Agency's

operation

TlPage

ii. Early adoption of standards

The entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in year 2018/20t9-
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Annual Report and Financiel St&tements
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Agency and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must be
met before revenue is recognized:-

Grants
Grant from Govemmenl and Development partners is recognized as capital reseryes

Board Administrative Costs Fees
This relates to Water Service Providers (WSPs) share of Board administratrve costs.

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions
Rendering of services

The entity recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of completron when

the outcome ofthe transaction can be estimated reliably.

I nterest income
lnterest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal amount outstanding
and the effective interest rate applicable.

b) Budget information
The entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure disclosed rn the

financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using a classificatron based

on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a

cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis

and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A comparison ofbudget

and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the

statement ofcompanson ofbudget and actuaI amounts.

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also made for

differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of the financial

statements and the approved budget.

I
/
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A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial performance
has been presented on page 5-7of these financial statements.

c) Taxation
The Agency is a non-commercial State Corporation established under the Water Act,20l6 Section 65

and is funded fully by the exchequer to implement National public Water and Sanitation Works on

behalf of the National Govemment and therefore the operations of the Agency are not for profit and

hence does not pay taxes.

d) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. When

signrficant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the entity
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the

plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition critena are satisfied. All other repair and

maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-

exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

e) Research and development costs

The Entity capitalises research and development costs on an individual project basis when it can be

demonstrated that:

)The technical feasibility of completing the asset will be available for use

FIts intention to complete and its ability to use the asset

D the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

!The availability ofresources to complete the asset

F The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is canied at cost less any accumulated amortization

and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete

and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period ofexpected future benefit.

f) Financial liabilities
lnitial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value

through loans and borrowings.
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g) Inventories
Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value.
lnventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the ordinary

h) Provisions
Trade Debtors are recognized and carrred at the net Board's Administrative costs fee less a general

provision for bad and doubtful debts at l0% as at the balance sheet date. The general practice in the

Industry reveals that revenue collection rate ranges between 90 - 95 % of the billing. However, this will
be affected since WSPs rn the Agency area are reluctant to remtt the Board Administration cost fee as

Water Provision Services is a devolved function.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net of any

reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities
The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any contingencies in the

notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic

benefits or service potential is remote.

Contingent assets

The Entity does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible asset whose

existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not

wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets are

assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

lf it has become virnrally certain that an inflow of econornic benefits or service potential will arise and

the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the

financial statements ofthe period in which the change occurs.

i) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Agency maintains and creates reserves in terms ofspecific requirernents. The Agency maintains the

following reserves;

. Capital Reserves - Thrs relates to the development grants allocated by the

govemment includrng the grants from development partners.

Deficit for the year This relates to expenses recognised in the statement of
Financial Performance whose corresponding income is a grant reflected in the

Capital Reserve Account.

l0 | P a g e
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All financial liabilities are recognized initrally at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings,

plus directly attributable transaction costs.



k) Employee benefits
Retirement benefit plans

The Entity provides retirement benefits for its employees. Defined contribution plans are post-

employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund),
and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged against

income in the year in which they become payable.

Gratuity Fund- This is a sinking fund set for the purposes of payment ofsenior management staff upon

expiry of their employment contract. This is calculated at 3lVo of their basic salary as per their

employment contracts.

l) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions rn foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the date of
the transaction.

m) Borrowing costs

Bonowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and equrpment.

Such bonowing costs are capitalized upon completion ofthe acquiring or construction of the asset.

n) Related parties
The Agency regards the following as related parties:

. Water Companies under the Agency's jurisdiction who remits Board Administrative Costs Fee

During the Financial Year the Board Administrative Cost Fee was Kshs. 2,774,598.

. Covemment - The Agency gets Crants from the Govemment. During the Financial year the

received Recurrent Grants amounting to Kshs. 87,328,496 and Development Grants amounting

to Kshs. 370,750,000.

. Management - The Agency's management comprises of the Chief Executive Officer and Senior

Managers. During the financial year the Management salaries amounted to Kshs.21,104,602.

. Board Members - During the financial year the Board expenses amounted to Kshs.7,290,345.
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j) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Entity recognizes the effects ofchanges in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects of changes

in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospectrve application is impractical.
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o) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call and

highly liquid investments wrth an original rnaturrty of three months or less, which are readily convertible

to known amounts of cash and are subject to insrgnificant risk of changes in value. Bank account

balances include amounts held at various commercial banks at the end ofthe financial year.

Budget information
The original budget for FY 2018/2019 was approved by the Board Members on l6th January 2018.

Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance with

specific approvals from the Board. The additional approprrations are added to the original budget by the

entity upon receivrng the respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget.

The entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure disclosed in the

financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basrs using a classification based

on the naturc of expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a

cash basis. The amounts in the financial staternents were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis

and reclassificd by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget

and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the

statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments

to amounts in the financial statements are also made for differences in the formats and classification

schemes adopted for the presentation ofthe financial statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statemcnt of financial performance

has been presented on page 5-7 of these financial statements.

p) Comparative figures
Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or reconfigured

to conform to the required changes in presentation.

q) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the financial

statements for the year ended June 30, 201 9.
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5. SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires management to

make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,

assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.

However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estrmates could result in outcomes that require a

material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is

calculated on a reducing balance basis over the expected usefut tife of the assets. The annual rates of
depreciation are as follows: -

Motor Vehicles, motor bikes and boats
Fumiture and Fittings
Plant and Equipment
Computer and Accessories
Water lnfrastructure/Schemes

Motor Vehicles and motor bikes
Fumiture and Fittings
Computer and Accessories

25%
t2.5%
20%
33.3%
25%

Amortization for Capital Grants
Capital grants relates to various assets which were donated by KWSP, GTZ and MWS at the formation

of the Agency. Amo(ization is calculated on a reducing balance basis using the respective asset items

annual rate as follows:-

2s%
t2.5%
33.3%

Estimales and assumptions
The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Entity based its

assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.

However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to market

changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Entity. Such changes are reflected in the

assumptions when they occur. IPSAS I . 140

Useful lives and residuol values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform

potential future use and value from disposal:

D The condition of the asset based on the assessmenr of experts employed by the Entity

) The narure of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and processes

) The narure of the processes in which the asset is deployed

13 | P a g e
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i Availability of funding to replace the asset

) Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information

available.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate ofthe expenditure requrred to settle the

obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

The management made the following provisions in FY 2018/2019;

. General provision for bad and doubtful debts at l0%

14 | t'a g c
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and staff salaries debt.
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6. Board Adminlstrrtive Costs fee

Board Administrative Costs fee* - Anncx I

Totsl

Unconditional Grants
GoK Rccurrent Grants - Reccivcd by TWWDA
GoK Crants - Salaries paid to Secondcd Staff

Total (;overnment Grsnts and Subsidies

7(b). Transfers from Ministry

li. Other Income

Sale of Tender Documents

Exhauster Services Charges*
Water Boozer Charges**

Sale of trees***

Total Other Income

2018/19
Shs

2,77 4,598

2017n8
Shs

|,707 ,699
2,714,59t) I,707,699

* Board Administrative Cost Fees comprised of revcnue collccted from Kycni Water Association KES 329,764,

Murugi Mugumango Water Association K.ES 410,335 and Ngagaka Water and Sanitation Co. KES 2,034,499.

7. Transfers from other Governments
2018n9

Shs

2017n8
Shs

87,328,496 67,128,912

2018/r9
Shs

432,000

I,I 10,640

594,000

445,350

2,581,990 4,978962

2017n8
Shs

446,000

2,32t,806
2,21I ,t56

Name of the Entity Sending the Grant Amount
Recognlzed in
Statement of

Comprehensive
Income

Amount
Recognized in

Capital Reserve
Fund

Totrl grant income
during th€ yerr

Ks hs Kshs Ks hs

Ministry 0f Watcr & Sanitation 193, | 70,401 291 ,908,093 485,078,496

Total 193,170,403 29t,908,093 ,rE5,078,496

15

77,600,000 57,240,000

9,72 8,496 r 0,188,972

87,328,496 67,428,972

*The decrease in Exhauster Service Charges is due to increased competition Ji'om lhe private

enterprises.
t* In lhe FY 2017/2018 high water bowser income was ocassioned by landslides in Murang'a which

affected the l(ater Supply in various parts of the County hence needfor waler trucking sernices lo

lnstitutions and residents this was not the case in FY 2018/2019.
t*+ This relates to sale oflrees lo clear lhe site.for conslruction of Meru Sewerage ponds.



rThe decrease in watet cost is due lo payment oJwater bill hy the County Government o! Nyeri - department ol
Water whom we share the vater connection.

" ln FY 2017/2018 the subscriplion lees lor Federution of Kenya Enployers vas paid in qrredts which is not
the cqse in 2018/2019.
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9. Use of Goods and Servlces
Electriciry
water.
Secu ty
Professional and Subscription fees "
Use of Goods & Servlce!

10. Employee Cosas

Salaries and Wages'
Contributions to Pension.
Commuter Allowances'
Housing Allowances*
NSSF-Emplol,er Contribution
Cratuity
Leave Allowance**
Salary Top Ups

Employee cosls

ll. Remunerstlol of Dlrectors

Chairman's Honoraria'
Sining Allowance, Accommodstion & Travel"
Directors Medical & GPA lnsurance"'

2018/ r 9

Shs

2017/ l8
Shs

750,901 865.680

5 t,879 173,755

r,746,380 t,',t43,3t',7

244,850 I8,700
2,794,010 3,096,452

2018/t9 20t7na
Shs Shs

32,115,'t'13 3t,235,637
1,224,t22 t.194.564
2.445.600 2.370.000

6.9'74,456 6,844,290
48.400 43.200

2,60',7,844 2,338.609

r,562,806 533,962
'7,511,8t6 7,'72t,t41

55,t50,8t7 52,28t,403

Stsff Estrblishments 76 79
* Solaries, wage, pension.commuler qllowance and house allowances increased due lo annual increment,
adj slment lo attain minimum wage increase and payment to stalf on inlernship.

** Leove allowance increased due lo adoption o/lhe approved HR policyJor paying leave ollowance equal to
the basic salary rather thon l/3 o! basic salory

The staffcosts include sqlaies qmounting to Ksfu.9,728,196 paid by the County Govemme of Nyeri, Murang'a and lhe Ministry o!
Wqter and Sanitation directly lo 26, I, I sto.fs rcsWctiwly seconded to 7'U'W'D.4.

20t8/t 9

Shs

t00,000
6,918,77?

t41,633

2011n8
Shs

8.095.500

571,385

Totrl Borrd Erpense __L!961195________g

' ln 2017 /2018 the Agency did not hdve a subslantive chairmon o/ the Boord. ln 201&2019 chairmans honororia is onlyJor
neo monlhs (Mdy and June 2019) since the Board chairman uas oppointed in February 2019 but TWI'DA was ga::etted in
the nonrh of May 2019

" The decrease in sitring allora'ance & accommodation it due to lapse of kms oj I Boqrd members on ls, Oclober 2018. Ne*' board
members u,ere appointed on 7th February 2019 but commenced husiness in May 2019 when TWWDA was go:etted.
r" Directors me<lical snd G PA lnsurance rclate to the prepaymments o/ the Ff 2017r2018 for lhe nonths oJJuly lo September and
an omount paid Jor retiring Boqtd L'lemhers lron 25th Sept 2018 to lst Ocl 2018

t6



Tana Water Works Development Agency

Annual R€port and Financial Statements
For lhe Year Endcd June 2019

I2. Depreciation snd Amortizrtlon Expense

Propcny. Planl and Equipmcnl

Totrl Deprecistion rnd Amortiz.tion

13. Reprirs and Mrhtenrnce

Property

Computcr
Vchicles*

t7 I t 789 150 ?5{ 05{

2018/19 2011/la
Shs Shs

708.330 1,302.90r

L t86.255 5.432.962

2018/19

Shs

t70 8ri6.789

2017 
^8Shs

150,754,054

3.100 091 1.054,322

Totrl ReDalrs and Maintenance 5,294'682 9.790.185
*7Irc increuse in repdirs and ,nainlen(tnce tost.[or tehicles is (he to increased ocli|iq' rcsullingfrom lhe

implementation of.lDRjtnded projects In oddition, TU'll Dl vhicles are aged.

14. Contracled Serviccs
2018/19

Shs
oll ",o7

20t7fi8
Shs

2.826,348Consultancy

Tolrl Contrected Servlces* 291 li2 18

+-l his rcldtes lo controcted se.,,ices costs ihc rrcd during lhc reporling pet krd. llo\rewr lhere is pending legol

Jecs ol KtiS 6,927,239.76 n'hich relates to cohtingent li.fiilities.[or litigutions vhich v,ere continuing and had

not yct heen cottcltded dnd delemtined 4\ ot 30th Junc 2019

15. General Expcnses

The following !re included In General Expenses:

Advcrtising & Publicity
ASK Show Costs *

Audit fees

Conferences and Meetings tt
Consumables - OfIce & Housc Keeping

Fuel and lubricantsr"
Staff lnsurances - Medical & Group Lifc
work Injury and StaffGPA
Property lnsurance

Sub Totrl

20r8il9
Shs

1,t27.3 r5
1.420.700

580.000

r,808.700

I,834,920

6,276,535

I0.539.303
341,7t8
52,905

21,9r8,096

2011n8
Shs

t,319,250
448,560

558,000

870,400

2,288.298

5,648,030

t0.448,604
434,t95

sn ?s'l

22,066,090

* .lSK Show costs increased .lue to the cost inc red hy the /lgency dwing ll'ater Sen'icei Prot'iders Associdlion

exhibitioh ond l+orld tl'aler Day celebrdtion in Noirohi ond Kakamega respectiwly
..1'his reldtes lo training on mandgement s*ills,*pen'ision ond financial management, inforrnalion securily
ntobagement co rse,frautl and invstigation at lien),o School of Govrnment. Kenya Bearau ofStandards and

Institurc of lnrerndl Audilors.
*rr l.'uel ond lubricant cost increosed due to in.reosed dcti|ities during supen'ision of the Construction o! Doms

and implenentotion of the ,4DB.funded projects.

l1
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Motor Vehicle Insurances
Travelling & Subsistence

Foreign Travelr
Postage and Courier
Printing and stationery*'
Clcaning costs and Ground Maintenance
Telecommunication/Telephone
Training **'
Intcmet and Nctworking
Compuler Stalionery 8nd Accessories."'
Library
Catering Serviccs

Stalf Welfarc
Workshop & Scminsrs
Laboratory Matcrials & Equipments**"'
Drugs & dressings
Exhauster Services Costs
Watcr Boozer Costs

ISO 9000 QMS and Transition to ISO

9001:2015 qY5**'** '
ADB GoK Counterpart Expenscs - Murang'a
Bulk

ADB CoK Counterpan Expenses - Small Towns

Feasibilty Study..'r..r
Computer Softwarc licenccs & Maintenance
Cenralised Billing Stationeries
Sub Totrl

:.348.760 4.685.ri80

50,000 419.1r62

2018/t9
Shs

2,192,470
t9,857, t27
2,93 1,063

r4r,525
6,837,428

4 t9,000
|,8',11,252

r,089,960
462,780

5,044,721

440,'t 60

2,'725,304

1,620,550

4,384,678
l0l,0l6

2,085,075

537,4'10

140,200

17,700

I,388,493

55.747.332

2017 8

Shs

2,533.487

22.'7t9,t70

165,8?2

4,592,168
449,800

2,244.340
51S S00

4r7,600
4,009,530

42'1,620

2,794,090
1,676,4t0
5,882,890

5,600

t,867,9t5
l,l0l,3l2

2.5-t4.9'13

2.392,t28
I t2.100

61,632,241

*Foreign Travel relotes to Cost oJ tovel by 2 memhers o/staf/to Zambia to allehd East qhd South Alrica
Accounlanl General Conlerence and one nember of staffattended o world l{oter Technolog/ Inovotion Summil
in London.
r' f'he increase in the cost of printing and Srotionery is rclated to the cosl of pinting Tender documenls /or the

ADB Funded Projects. Waler Honesling and Watet for Schools.

'atThis relates to training on qnagement skills,supertision andJinancial nanagement, in/ormalion securitt
,nahagement course,Iraud and investigation at Kenyo School o/Gowrnment, Kenya Bearau o/Standards and
lnstitute of Intemal Audilors.

"r'The increase in the cost o/Computer Stotionery is related to the co ofcaEidges and toners /or prinling o/
fender documents lor ,he ADB /unded projects. Water llarvesling and lluter for School.

"a" l,aboralory Materials and Eqtipment relates lo payments to Kenyo Bureau of Standards lor calibrotion o/
labdratory equipmenls

tt*"tThecostof ISO 9000 QMS and Transition ro ISO 9001:2015 QMS was higher in F| 201712018 as a
resu ofDaining staff on the requirement o/ ISO 9001 . 20 I 5 and toining of ISO owlitors. ln Ff 2018t2019the
Agency has been inplementing the ISO 9001:2015 hence lower costs.

r""'1 Feqsibility sludy relares b Nltubu lloter Supply and Seu'erage project

[t



Tana Water Works Developme nt Agency
Annual Reporl and Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 2019

Gcneral Prov. Bad and Doubtf'ul debts

Spccific Prov. tsad and Doubtful dcbts'
Engineering Dcsigns & Plans

WASREB
Drought Mitigation Intervention

ADB GoK Counterpan Expenses - Kcnya Towns

Sustainablc Water Supply & Sanitation

Sagana Restoration Projcct expenscs**
Corporate Social Responsibilityl'*

20t 8/19
Shs

(r,670,469)
5,5'19,273

'19,102

2 t.856,394

35,t397,155

1,'174,5',76

r75.000

63,691,031

20t7n8
Shs

(2,231,232\
2,640,082

1,832,800

76.509.348

.10,6r{0,256

l19,425,254

Total Genoral Erpenses 143.426,,159 203,12.1,591

.These rclates lo specific ptotisionlor Gichugu ll'ater Conpany. l'he k'SP vas disinlegroled into independent water schemes that

are not financially sustainable and therefore are unable lo sellle lhe debl.

t* Sa4ana resloration project relales to the preliminary utsts.for project sensiti..llion on.l the cosl olcarrying out

hydrological sun'ey.

,tr This reldtes to lhe cost of planting 7000 trces. This is 2018/2019 per/ormance conlracting target under the presidential

directite category

16. Flnrnce Costs
2018/19 2017/18

Shs Shs

Bank Chargcs

Totrl Finrnce Costs

t3l nl2 l6-'1 9

___1!.!..q?2-_&1,!_l_L

T
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2l A. Propert!, Plant and Equipment

Land and
Buildirgs

ADB Project
Water

lnfrastructure
Kahuti
Scheme

Motor
Vehicles

Furniture
and l'ittings

Plant and
Equipment

Computers
and Printers

Total

Cost Shs Shs Shs Shs Shs Shs Shs Shs Shs
At I July 2017 29,504,E79 3,720.107,400 2,210J 13,723 I ?,770.088 90.510.030 5,,117,3t4 10,287,512 35,EE2,301 6,140,021,377
Additions 29,726,0s8 329,563,049 37.500 923,290 360,249,E97
Disposals

Transfers/adjustmcn
At 30 June 2018 59,2-10,937 3,?20,307,,t00 2,559,816,772 r 7,770,088 90,5.t0,030 5,45r1,884 10,2E7,572 16.805.591 6,500,273,27 4

26.007.395 1.006.342.191 t37,250 |,032,024 I,03-1.S 18,860
Disposals

Transfer/adjuslmentr
At 30 J une 2019 E 5,2 3li,-r3 2 3,720,30?,400 3.566,2t8,963 17,770.088 90,540,030 5,592,134 10,2lt7,572 37,837,6t5 7,53-1.792.134
Depreciation and impairment
At I July 2017 270,390,054 240,612,513 1,319,527 7,t,980,579 3,35E,79E 7,945,496 31,64E,021 633,45i1,9E8
Dcpreciation 86,247 ,934 57.98 t.607 336,264 1.889.861 259,448 468.415 1,570,523 150,75,1,054
lmpairmcnt
At 30 Junc 201ll 3s6,637,9E8 298,594,r20 4.655,791 78,{t70,442 -'r,6r 8,246 It.4ll.9l I 33,41tt,5,l4 "t84,209,042

Depreciation 84.091.735 n 1,690.62 I 32't ,857 2,9t7,397 231,431 374.732 | .241 .016 t 70,{t86.789
Disposals
Impairment
Transfer/adjustmcnt

At 30 Junr 2019 440,729,723 180,284,7,11 .r.983,648 lll,787,839 3,[t55,677 8,788,643 34,665,560 955,095,831

At 30 Junc 2019 E5,23t,332 3,219 ,511 ,677 3,185,934,222 r2,786.440 E,752.191 1,716.457 t,498,929 1,172,055 6,57E.696,303
At 30 June 20lE 59,230,937 3,363,669,412 2,26t,282,652 t3,t t4,291 I1.669.511E I,836,638 1.873,661 3,387,047 5,716,064,232

)1

Additions

Net book values
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2l B. Amortization of Capital Crant

Motor Veh icles
Furniture and
Fittings

Computers and
Accessories

'l'ota I

Cost Shs Shs Shs Shs

At I July 2017 9.506,000 98,1,960 2,169,822 13,260,782
Additions
Disposals
Transfers/ad j ustments

At 30 Ju ne 2018 9,506.000 98,1.960 2,769,822 13,260,782
Additions
Disposals

Transfer/adjustments
At 30 J une 2019 9,506,000 9ri{.960 2,169,822 13,260,782
Amortization
At I July 2017 9,204,885 794,690 2,748,367 12,747,942
Amortization 75,279 23,784 7.t51 106,21.1

Impairment
At 30 June 2018 9,280,164 8l ti.474 2,755,s 18 r 2,854,156
Amortization 56,459 20,81 I 4.7 68 82,0lri
Disposals
Impairment
Transfer/adj ustmeni

At 30 J une 2018 9,336,623 839,285 2,760,286 12,936, t 94

Net book values

At 30 June 2019 t69,317 145.675 9.536 -124.5[i8
At 30 June 2018 225,836 t66..186 r4,304 106.626



22. Work In Progress

Refurbishment of Maji House
Mathira Community Water Projects
Ndia KaruiruWater Project

Kamumu Dam

Rupingazi Dam
Thambana Dam
Maua Water Supply Distribution Network,
Sewerage & Drainage System.

Mwea Makima
Drought Mitigation
lmenti Central Water Project

Iraru Dam
Kathita Dam

Mariara Dam

Ura Dam

Kabiru-ini Water Project

Githanga Borehole
Thangatha Dam
Kianjuri Dam

Karia-ini Dam

Marania Dam

Mukurwe-ini Water Project

Small Dams and Pan

Kamwene Water Project
Water for Schools

Sub-total

2018/t9
Shs

4,270,2t0
254.486,646

400,000

6,51 8,287

l,l 15,5 t6
l,ll5,5l4

960,000

29,500
2,020,237

514,420

32,t82,822

2017n8
Shs

4,2"70,2t0
246,t33,639

6,467 ,58'7

I,ll5,5l6
l.ll5,5l4

753,481,345

14,61 8,502
42,556,479

2,004,504
5 t 4,420

1 ,905,1 6 r

18,158,584

I ,9 t 5,700

2,226,t69
9,629,455

r 8,931,132
821 ,400

|,378,667

54, I 19,07 I

82 I ,400
t7 ,969,07 5

3,470,092
537,250
77 t,676

38t,301,7t6 I,127,243,984
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ADF Loan - Small Towns & Rural Wster
Supply & Ssnitation Projects

Water Meters
Pipes and Fittings

Sub-totsl

ADB Loan - Kenya Towns Sustainable
Water Supply & Sanitation Projects

Tana Water Works Development Agency

Consultancy Services

Works
Sub Total

North€rn Water Works Development Agency

Consultancy Services

Works
Sub Total

Total ADB -Kenya Towns
'lotal Work ln Progress

lJ0 IJ57 17 5 tt( ) e<7 77 5

t 89, t 15,055 189,I 15,055

123,063,790

100.027,889

223,091,679

l r 5.175,790

I t 5,175,790

123,275,600

552,023,452

75;720,315

675 299 052 75 720 -1 l5

898,-r90,73 t 190,896, t 05

I,468.ti07.502 1,507,255,144

2017 n8
Shs

2018/r9

Shs

108,25?,280

2017118

Shs

108,257,280

2018/19

Shs

23. Trade snd Other Payables from Exchange Transrctions

Tradc payables - Annex III
Shorl term loan - Mewass+

Total Trade and Other Pavables

39,290,556

30,000,000

t4,629,77 6

69.290,556 14,629,776

* The Agency was advanced KES 30 Million by Meru Water an<l Sewerage Services to acquire land for
conslruclion of Meru Sewerage Infrastuclure

T

I
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24. Borrowings
24(a). ADF Loan No. 21001500I5546 ID No. P-Kf,-E00-005

2018/r9
ADF Loan - Water Services Bolrd Support Projects Shs

r 5,903,200
t,436,972,t29

20t7 8

Shs

15,903,200

t.436,972,t29
(i) Loan Revenue - Special Account
( ii) Direct Payments

Extemal borrowings during the year

Repayment of extemal borrowings during the year

Balance at the end of the period

2. Northern Water Works Developmena Agency
Balance at the beginning of the period;
Extemal borrowings during the year

r,452,875,329 I,452,875,329

The total Borrowintls are non-current liabilities. The purpose ofthe loan was for infraslruclure
development and the security is The National Treasury. The loan was rendered al an inlerest rate of
394 per annum over a period of30 years including a grace period of5 years. The grace period of5
years is from the date ofcompletion ofthe Projects and the Projecls were completed in December

2013.

ADF Loan - Small Towns & Rural Water Supply & Sanitation Projecls No. 2100150021S43 ID.
No. P-KE-E00-007

Balance at the beginning of the period;
(i) Loan Revenue - Special Account
( ii) Direct Pa).rnents

Extemal borrowings during the year

Repa).ment of extemal borrowings during the year

Balance at the end of the period
TOTAI ADF LOsN

I,920,515,078 1,920,515,078

The tolal Borrou'ings are non-current liabilities. The purpose oJ the loan was for infraslruclure
developmenl and the security is The National Treasury. The loan was rendered al an interest rate of
3'% per annum over a period of 30 years including a grace period oJ'5 years. The grace period of 5

years is from the date of completion of the Projects and the Projects were completed in December

20t 5.

24(b). ADB Loan No. 2000200000501 Project No. P-KE-E00-01 I
ADB Kenya Towns Sustainable Water Supply & Sanitation Program
l. Tana Water Works Development Agency
Balance at the beginning ofthe period; I 15,175.790

Extemal borrowings during the year 107,915,889 I 15,175,790

Repayment of extemal borrowings during the year

Brlance ot the end of the period 223,091,679 I15,175,790

24,7 t0,700
r.895.804.378

24,7 t0,700
r,895,804,378

3,373,390,407 3,373,390,407

7 s,720,3t 5

599 ,57 8,7 37
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Repa).rnent of extemal bonowings during the year

Balance at the end of the period

'l otal Al) l] l.oan

l,ess: Total Currcnt Portion of Bank Loans

l'otal Non-Current Borrowings (ADF loan +ADB
Loan)

25. Cash Gencrated from Opcrations

Surplus for the year before tax
Adjusted for:
Depreciation

Working capitsl adjustments:
lncrease/Decrease in inventory
Decrease in receivables

Decrease in payables

Decrease in Prepayments

Net cash flows from operating activities

Balance b/f
GoK Development Grants

NRW lntervention
Water for Schools

Drought Mitigation

675,299,052 7s,720,315

898,390,73 t 190.896,105

4,271,781,1-18 3,564.286,512

2018/19

Shs

20t7 fi8
Shs

2018/t 9

Shs
(293,088,197)

2017ll8
Shs

(3S6,686,404)

170,886,789 r50,754,054

2017n8
Shs

4,499,635,I I 3

210.000.000

I 0.000,000

27,000.000
47,000,000 s r .000,000

2018/t 9

Shs

4.770,635,113

323,750,000

T

T

21

26. Capital Reserves

r 27.33 r 2,105

16.993.763 20.670,303

54.660,7tt0 9.5 t?.250
l 19, l0o (s27,362)

(50,300,434) (t76

5,168,385,Il-1 4,770,6-15,1l3
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27. Accumulated l'und
Balance Brought Forward
Surplus/Deficit for the Period
Amortisation of capital $ant
Capital Crant b/f
Cratuity Fund

Capital Granl

28. ADB Loan Repayment Fund
Balance Brought Forward
Murang'a South
Kahuti
lnterest lncome

Bank charges

29. Deficit Analysis
Depreciation for the period*

Specific Provision*
General Provision (Decrease)t

Expensed Project Administrative Expenses/Costs. *t
Administrative anears***

(r,018,391,056) (726,382,788)

2018/t9
Shs

(726,382,788)
(293,088, 197)

82,038
(406,626'l

| ,079,929
324,588

20t7lt8
Shs

(368,197,293)
(3s6,686,404)

t06,2t4
(512,840)

( I ,499,091 )
406,626

2,000,000

338,640
18,550

(4,850)

2,000.000

338,640
18,550

(3,06s)

2.352.340 2,354,125

r 74,812,593
105,286,I 35

12,989,469
293.088.r97

* These are non-cashflow ilems included in the Stalemenl ofFinancial Performance.
ar This relates to projecl administralive expendilures incurred and expensed during the reporting
period.
t**These relale to expences paid from arrears collecledfrom WSPs during the rePorting period and

utilized brtnance FY20l8/2019 expendilures. These incomes were accounled for in the previous

accounling periods.

28

170,886.789

5,596,2't3
(t,670,469)
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Agency's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks and
effects of changes in foreign currency. The company's overall risk management programme focuses on
unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimrse the potential adverse
effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The company does not
hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extended to customers with an
established credit history.

The Agency's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

(i) Credit risk
The Agency has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay
amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with
banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments.

Management assesses the credit quality ofeach customer, taking into account its financial position,
past experience and other factors. lndividual risk limrts are set based on intemal or extemal
assessment in accordance with limits set by the Board Members. The amounts presented in the
statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estrmated by the
company's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic
environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the
Agency's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral
obtained is made up as follows:

Total Amount (Kshs)

As at 30 June 2019

Bank balances 97,927,542
Receivables from Non Exchange Transactions 344,725,48t

As at 30 June 2018

36,976,424

361,576,244

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue trading.
The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for uncollectible
amounts that the company has recognised in the financial statements is considered adequate to
cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.

The Board Members set the company's credit policres and objectives and lays down parameters
within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

29 lP age
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(ii) Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Agency's Board Members,
who have built an appropriate liquidity nsk management framework for the management of the

Agency's short, medium and long+erm funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Agency manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the Agency under non-derivative financral
liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within l2 months equal their
carrying balances, as the impact ofdiscounting is not significant.

Less than I
month

Between I
3 months

Over
months

Total
Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Trade payables 2t,453,132 455,481 t'7 .381,942 39,290,556

Total

At 30 June 2018

Trade payables 389,980 t3,635,254 14,629,77 5

Total 22,0s7,673 1145,461 3l,017,196 53,920,331

(iii) Market risk
The Agency has put in place an Intemal Audit Function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by
TWWDA on an on-going basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal
accounting and operational controls.

Market risk rs the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices and

foreign exchange rates which will affect the Agency's income or the value of its holding of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum. Overall responsibilily for
managing market risk rests with the Audit and Govemance Committee.

The Agency's Management is responsible for the development of detailed risk management
policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Govemance Committee) and for the day to
day implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the Agency's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

I
I
I
I30 ll'agc
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iv) Capital Risk Management
The objective of the Agency's capital risk management is to safeguard the Agency's ability to
continue as a going concem. TWWDA capital structure comprises of the following funds:

2017-20 r 8

Kshs Kshs

Accumulated Fund ( r ,01 8,39 r ,0s6) (726,382,788)

Capital reserve 5,168,38s,r l3 4,770,635,t t3

ADB Loan Repayment Fund 2,352,340 2,354,t25
Total funds 4.,152,346,397 4,046,606,450

Total bonowings 4,341,071,,694 3,578,916,28'7

Less: cash and bank balances 97,427,542 36,976,424

Net debt/(excess cash and cash
equivalents)

4,243,644,152 3,542,968,202

Gearing 97 .80 88.4o/o

3I. RELATED PARTY BALANCES

Nature of related party relationships
Entities and other parties related to Tana Water Works Development Agency include those parties
who have ability to exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial
decisions. Related parties include management personnel, their associates and close family members.

i) The National Treasury and Planning
ii) The Ministry of Water and Sanitation;
iii ) Board Members
iv) Key Management Staff

3l I P a g e

20 t 8-2019

Government of Kenya
The Govemment of Kenya is thc Principal sharcholdcr of TWWDA, holding 100% of thc Agency equity
interest. The Govemment of Kenya has provided full guarantecs to all long-term lenders of TWWDA, both
domcstic and extemal. Other related partics includc:
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Transactions with related parties

Particula rs 20l9 2018

A. Grants from Government

GoK Recurrent Grants 87,328,496 67,428,972

GoK Developrnent Crants 397,750,000 271,000,000

Donations in Kind

'Iotal 485,078,496 338,428,972

B. Kev Management Compensation

Board Members Allowances 7,151 ,l 83 8,666,885

Compensation to the CEO 7,935,200 6,887,200

Compensation to the Key Management t3,169,402 12.t78,552

Total 28,2ss,785 27,732,637

I
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32. Events after the reporting period
There were no material adjusting and non-adjusting events after the reporting penod.

33. Ultimate and Holding Entity
The entity is a State Corporation under the Ministry of Water and Sanitation. It's ultimate parent is
the Govemment of Kenya.

34. Currency
The Financial Statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs.)

l'l
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APPENDIX l: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR
RECOMMENDATIONS

The following is the summary of issues raised by the extemal auditor, and management
comments that were provided to the auditor. We have nominated lbcal persons to resolve
the various issues as shown below with the associated time frame within which we expect
the issues to be resolved.

lcfcren
cc No
on thc
]xternal
audit
rc rt

Issue/Observations from Auditor Ntanagement comments Focal
point

person
to

resolve
the issue

Status Time frame

l Non- Current Assets
l.l Inherited Assets
The statement of Financial Position
reflects non-current assets balancc of
Kshs. 7,223,319,376 as at 30 June 2018.
However, as previously reported, thc
Board inherited a number of non-cunent
assets previously owncd by the Ministry
of Water and National Water
Conservation and Pipeline Corporalion.
which have not been incorporated in the
Board's financial statements for the ycar
ended 30 June 201 8. These asscts
include land and building (Maji Housc
Nyeri), Water and Sewerage
infrastructure assets of unknown valuc
spread within its jurisdiction and fiftccn
motor vchicles and District Water
Offices of unknown value. Furthcr. as

similarly noted in the previous ycar, the
assets net book values of Kshs.
I I,669,588 as at 30 June 201 8 disclosed
under note 2l A to financial statcments
include the value of four motor vchicles
still bearing G.K registration numbcrs
and which havc not bcen transferrcd to
the Board's name.

The formcr MWI and
NWC&PC transferred
assets to TWSB that were
handed over to Water
Service Providers. These
assets havc not been
included in the financial
statement because
although the MWI
contractcd a consultant to
undertake thc valuation of
assets and cventually
handed ovcr the draft
valuation rcpon, the value
stated in thc valuation
repon has not been
formally agrccd upon by
the WSPs bccause somc
assets wcrc not reflected
in the valuation report.
For this rcason, the
management of TWSB
has not officially tabled
the report to thc Board ol
Directors for adoption so

that the asscts can be

included in the financial
statemcnts of the Board.
It is important to note that
the initial transfer plan
has already cxpired.
However, thc MWS is

TWSB is a

waiting for
official
communicat
ion from
MWS on the
implemcntat
ion of the
transfer
plan.

Immediately
once the
communicat
ion from the
parent
Ministry on
the
implemenlat
ion of
transfer plan
is received.
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mandatcd to gazette the
revised transfer plan and
guide the water
institutions on the road
map towards its
implemcntation.
TWSB is thereforc
waiting for official
communication from
MWS on thc
implementation of the
transfer plan, In addition
as indicated abovc the
valuation report has not
been formally agreed
upon and somc assets are
not reflected in thc
valuation reporl leading to
the cxclusion of some
assets in thc Boards
financial stalemcnls.
Howevcr, thc Board has

made effon by requesting
the Ministry of Water and
sanitation to have the
motor vchicles transferred
to thc Board

Eng
M.M.
Naivasha
- Chief
Executiv
e Officer

TWSB is a

waiting for
official
communicat
ion from
MWS on the
value of GK
registercd
vehicle

1.2 Grounded Motor Vehicles
The motor vehicle net book value
balance of Kshs 11,669,588 as at 30
June20l8excludes the seven groundcd
vehiclcs of unknown valucs and which
have not bcen used by the Board for
several ycars. No explanation was
provided for failurc to includc these
Motor vchiclcs in the assct rcgistcr and
financial statcmcnts. Consequently, thc
completcncss and accuracy of motor
vehicles balancc of Kshs 11,669,588 as

at 30 Junc 201 8 could not be confirmed

All the grounded motor
vehicles are included in
the Board Asset
Register as at 30 June
2018. Except the value
of the vehicles with GK
registration, the values
of the other vehicles are
included in the motor
vehicle balance of
Kshs.11,669,588 as at

30 June 201 8.

These asscts have not
bcen included in the
financial statements as

Eng
M.M

TWSB
waiting
official

ls a

for
Similarly and as previously reportcd, the
Property plan and Equipment balance of
Kshs. 5,716,064,232 as at 30 June 2018

Tana Water Works Development Agency
Annual Report and Financial Statements
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GK
registered
Motor
Vehicles
will
immediately
be entered
in the asset

register oncc
the
communicat
ion of the
value fiom
the parent
Ministry is

received.
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Immediately
oncc the
official
transfer is
carried out
bctwcen the
two Agency

Naivasha
- Chicf
Exccutiv
c Offlrcer

Eng
M.M.
Naivasha
- Chicf
Exccutiv
c Officer

communlcat
ion from
MWS on thc
values of
these Assel
Grants.

TWSB is

awaiting for
official
transfer to
bc camed
out between
the two
Agency

their valucs are yet to bc
givcn by the Ministry.
Howcver, the Board has

rcquested the ministry to
providc the values to
enablc the management
include the assets in the
subscqucnt years

Thc projccts under
Taanathi wcre developed
by TWSB. The exclusion
of thcsc assets from
TWSB Financial
Statcments shall bc

effectcd after the official
transfer is carried out
bctween thc two Boards.
Thc official transfer of
assets and liabilities has

not stallcd but it is

expcctcd to take place in
duc course because the
excrcise involves thc
Board of Dircctors and

TWSB Board of Direclors
had deliberated on this
mattcr.

cxcludes unknown valuc of a water
boozer and sevcral water tanks reccivc
from the parent Ministry and which are
bcing used by thc Board. This has in
cffect understated the value of property,
plant and equipment in the financial
statement and commensurate
depreciation.
Further, the Japancse Intemational
Cooperation Agency (JICA) funded
through a grant water project under
Embu Water and Sanitation Company
Limited, a Water Serviccs Provider
(WSP) under the jurisdiction of the

Board. Although the Board estimates thc
cost of the project to be KSHS. 2.3

billion, the asscts developed under the
project have not becn included in thc
financial statements and no documentary
evidcnce was provided in support of
these costs.

In addition, the Property, Plant and

Equipment balance includes an amount
of Kshs. 26,252,205 in respect of
Kiambere-Mwingi watcr supply project
which is under thc jurisdiction of
Tanathi Water Serviccs Board but whose
initial development cost was bome by
Tana Water Services Board. Although
the Board does not draw any benefits
from Kiambere-Mwrngi Water Project,
thc Board continues to reflect as assets

the cosl of these assets in its books and
charges annual dcprcciation on the

asscts. ln addition, no documentary
cvidence in respect ol transfer of the
project assets from Tana Water Services
Board to Tanathi Watcr Services Board
was made availablc for audit
verification.

Eng M.
M.
Naivasha
- Chicf
Exccutiv
c Officcr

Follow-up
is being
made to
ensure that
documentat
ron of the
I-and is

The issue of land
ownership is being
followed up with the
owner and the local

1.4 Failure to Obtain Title Deed
for Kiawaiguru Water Project

Included in the additions during the
year of Kshs. 329,563,049 under
infrastructure as disclosed in note

2lA to the financial statement is an
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Administration in view
of getting the
documentation for the
land.

being
acquired

amount of Kshs. 4,202,829 paid to
MiS Geocast Agencies Limited for
construction ol Kiawaiguru Water
Tank Project in 2015/2016 financial
year. However, audit review revealed
that although the land upon which
the tank was built was voluntarily
given to Tana Water Services Board,
ownership documents in the name of
the Board had not been obtained.

1.5 Lack of Non- Current Assets
Register
The Board did not maintain in the
year under review a comprehensive
non-current assets register. As a

result it was not possible to ascertain
fully the classes and description of
the assets and their costs. value.
location and existence, respectively.
In view of the circumstances
described above , the accuracy and
completeness of non-current assets

balance of Kshs, 7 ,223,319,376 as at
30 June 201 8 could not be therefore,
be confirmed.

Eng M.
M.
Naivasha
- Chicf
Exccutiv
c Officer

Follow up
with
relevant
bodied is

being made
to ensure
that all
assets

owned by
TWWDA
have
ownershrp
documents
and have
been
included in
the non-
current
asset
register.

Immediatel
y assets are
transferred
and values
confirmed

Ag. Chief Ex u tive ()fficer
Eng. John N. Mbogori

Date...)1... :. :....1:.. :.'.1...

Bo ember

3TlPage
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TWSB maintains assets
register which includes
only the assets whose
documents of
ownership are with the
Board
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APPENDIX II : PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY TANA WATER WORKS DEVELOPMf,NT AGENCY

Pro ects im lemented b the A nc funded b develo me nt artners
Project title Project Number Period/

duration
Donor/GoK
commitment

(Kshs)

Separate donor
reporting
(Yes/l{o)

Consolidated
in the

Financial
Statement

Kenya Towns Sustainable Water Supply and Sanitation Programme
1 Kerugoya Kutus water Supply Project rD NO.P-KE-E00-011 ADB 18 Months 1,301,651,496 Yes Yes

2 Kerugoya Kutus Sewerage Project rD NO.P-KE-E00-011 ADB 18 Months 544,099,570 Yes Yes

3 Chuka Water Supply Project tD NO.P-KE-E00-011 ADB 18 Months 505,550,711 Yes Yes

4 Chuka Sewerage Project tD NO.P-KE-E00-011 ADB 18 Months 472,960,4L7 Yes Yes

18 Months 645,288,4685 Chogoria Water Supply Project ADB Yes Yes

ADB 18 Months 449,442,497 Yes YesChogoria Sewerage Project
7 Meru sewerage Project tD NO.P-KE-E00-011 ADB 18 Months 1,138,500,000 Yes Yes

8 Mandera Water Supply Project tD NO.P-KE-E00-011 ADB 18 Months 7,752,58L,600 Yes Yes

ADB 978,87L,630 Yes9 Mandera Sewerage Proiect tD NO.P-KE-E00-011

10 Marsabit Water Supply Project rD NO.P-KE-E00-011 ADB 18 Months 7 40,006,322 Yes Yes

11 Marsabit Sewerage Project lD NO.P-KE-E00-011 ADB 18 Months 1,270,403,927 Yes Yes

LL Murang'a Urban Water Supply tD NO.P-KE-E00-012 ADB 10 Months 57,500,000 Yes No

13 Murang'a South Water Supply rD NO.P-KE-E00-013 10 Months 34,500,000 Yes No

10 Months 69,000,000L4 Othaya Water Supply rD NO.P-KE-E00-014 ADB No

ADB 10 Months l 15,000,000 Yes Yes15 Isiolo Town Water Supply
ADB 10 Months 230,000,000 Yes Yes15 Garisa Town Water Supply rD NO.P-KE-E00-016

rD NO.P-KE-E00-017 ADB 6 Months 410,300,000 Yes NoL7 lnstitution Support
rD NO.P-KE-E00-018 ADB 5 Months 181,500,000 Yes No18 Climate Change Adaptation

Total 10,998,156,567I
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ADB

Yes

rD NO.P-KE-E00-015
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For the Year Ended June 2019

Status of Projects Completion

TIIIIIIIIIITIT

Project title Total project Cost Completio
n o/o to
date

Budget Actual Sources of
Fund

A Kenya Towns Sustainable Water Supply and Sanitation
I Kerugoya Kutus water Supply Project I,301 ,65 1,496 276,481,61s l0o/o 197,703 243,t05,t94 ADB
2 Kerugoya Kutus Sewerage Project 544,099,5 l0 lr8,629,994 t0% 63, 128 104,678,41 5 ADB
3 Chuka Water Supply Project 606,550,71l 13,558,546 t0% 87,910 3,3s3,672 ADB
4 Chuka Sewerage Project 102,446,066 '10% 53,178 94,488,774 ADB
5 Chogoria Water Supply Project 645,288,468 t29,287,884 t0% 93,99s 118,431,269 ADB
6 Chogoria Sewerage Project 449,442,491 84,965,680 t0% 48. 140 77,404,063 ADB
7 Meru sewerage Project I ,l 38,500,000 206,I 68,700 t0% 157 ,7 55 174,901 ,308 ADB
8 Mandera Water Supply Project 1,752,581,600 318,551,491 t0% 279,880 296,975,190 ADB
9 Mandera Sewerage Project 978,871 ,630 225,349,885 t0% 144,910 213,298,846 ADB

t0 Marsabit water Supply Project 740,006,122 I 70,1 08,710 t0% 121.260 154,614,823 ADB
ll Marsabit Sewerage Project 1,270,403,927 244,103,630 t0% l8l,r38 217,504,542 ADB
t7 Murang'a Urban Water Supply 57,500,000 0% 66.000 ADB

Murang'a South Water Supply 34,500,000 0% 66,000 ADB
t4 Othaya Water Supply 69,000,000 0% 66.000 ADB
l5 Isiolo Town Water Supply I 15,000,000 r 9, 124,890 55% 99,003 19, 124,890 ADB
l6 Carisa Town Water Supply 230,000,000 28,720,100 10% 99,003 28,720,100 ADB
t7 Institution Support 410,100,000 0% ADB
l8 Climate Change Adaptation I 8l ,500,000 0% ADB

10,998,t 56,567 1,937 ,497 ,tgt 1,825,000 t,746,601,086
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Total expended to
date

472,960,411
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Total



APPENDIX III : INTER - ENTITY TRANSFERS

ENTITY NANIE TANA WATER WORKS DEVELOPI\{ENT AGENCY

Break down of Transfers from the Ministry of Water and Sanitation

FY 20t8/19
a. Recurrent Grants

Bank Statement Date Amount
(Kshs.)

FY to which the
amounts relate

(i) 05-09-201 8 6,666,667
(i i) t3-09-20 r8 6.666,667 FY 2018/19
( iii) 03- l0-201 8 6,666,667 FY 20r8i l9
(iv) 02-lt-2018 6 s'11 11',l FY 2018/19

(u) 03- l2-201 8 6,533,333 FY 20t8i l9
(ui) 24-0t-2019 6,533,33 3 FY 20r8/r9
(vii) t2-02-20t9 6,533,333 FY 2018/t9
(viii) 05-03-201 9 6,533,333 FY 2018/19
(vix) 04-04-2019 4,933,334
(x) l 7-05-2019 6,666,667 FY 20r8/r9
(xi) 06-04-2019 6,666,667 FY 2018/r9
(xii) 27 -06-20t9 6,666,666 FY 2018/19

Total 77,600,000

b Development Grants
Bank Statement Date Amou nt

(Kshs.)
FY to which the
amounts relate

(i) 03-07-201 8 r 40,000,000 FY 20t7fi8
( ii) I 8- l 0-201 8 6l ,250,000 FY 2018/19
(iii) 28-12-20t8 6l ,250,000 FY 2018/19

(iv)
27 -06-20t9 6l ,250,000 FY 2018/19

Total 323,750,000

c Water for Schools
t4-t-2019 27,000,000 FY 20t8l19

Total 27,000,000

d Drouqht Mitigation 25-6-2019 42,000,000 FY 20t8/19
25-6-2019 5,000,000 FY 20r8/19

47,000,000
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FY 2018/t9

FY 20r8/r9

Total



Amount
(Kshs.)

FY to which the
amounts relate

e Direct Payments

Works
7th Novcmber 201 8 80,022,3 l l.l r FY 2018/19

t6 7th November 201 8 20,005,577.84 FY 2018/t9
l9 102,t26,921.48 FY 2018/19
20 6th Dcccmber 201 8 103,941,301.41 FY 2018/19
2l 6th Dcccmbcr 2018 72,268,503.16 FY 2018/19
22 6th Dccember 201 8 12,268,502.99 FY 2018/19
23 6th Deccmber 20 I 8 I 00, l0 t ,738.52 FY 201 8/r I

6th Dcccmber 2018 100, l0l ,738.61 FY 20r8/19
Sub Total 652,05 t,341

Consultancv
13 8th October 201 8 20,176,403.55 FY 2018/19
14 Sth October 201 8 27,378,881 .69 FY 2018/19
25 9th April 2019 7,888,000.00 FY 2018/19

Sub Total 55,443,285.24

Grand Total 707,191,625.87

Tana Water Works Development Agency
Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Head of Finan \
Tana Wa pmen tA ency

Head of Accounting Unit
Ministry of Water & Sanitation

T
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4l I P a g e

Date Disbursement
Request Submitted
to MWS

l5

6th Dcccmber 201 8

24
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ANNEX I
BOARD ADMINISTRATIVE COST FEE EARNED DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

20 t ti/ l9

WSP COMPANY
AMOUNT
(KSHS.)

Kyeni 329,764

Murugi Mugumango 4'10,335

Ngagaka 2,034,499

Sub Total 2,774,598

BOARD ADMINISTRATIVE COST FEE ARREARS COLLECTED DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD

2018/19

WSP COMPANY
AMOUNl'
(KSHS.)

Embcwasco 2,250,000

Gatamathi 900,000

Imetha 300,000

Kahuti 800,000

Kirinyaga 1,500,000

Murang'a South '1,050,000

Mawasco 250,000

Murang'a 200,000

Muthambi 4k 180,000

Nginda Ngandori 150,000

Nithi |,044,469

Omwawco r,700,000
45,000

Tctu-Abcrdarc 2,280,000

Tuuru 250,000

Naromoru 90,000

Sub Total 12,989,469

Grand Total 15,764,067
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ANNEX II
A TRADE DEBTORS AS AT 30 JUNE 2OI9

(B) EXHAUS',TER & WATER BOWSER DEBIORS AS AT 30 JLrNI,l 2019

2018/ I 9 2017n8
AMOUNT
(KSHS.)(I) WSP COMPANY

A]VIOU N't
(KSHS.)

3,272,885Embe 1,022,885

73,169,455 73,t69,455Ewasco

7,146,040 8,069,725Gatamathi
3,556,494Gichugu

Imctha 7,962,466 8,262,466

Kahuti 8,690,232 9,490,233

9l.r 934Kathita Gatunga
t8,243,78sKirinyaga 16,743,785

34,366,395Mawasco 34,116,395

51 ,135,957 51,135,957Mewass

50,122,9t8Murang'a 49,922,918

256,000Muthambi 4K 76.000

23,899,784 24,949,784Murang'a South
t4,791,753Ngandori Nginda 14,641,753

2,101,0121 ,041 ,510Nirhi
52,929,735 52,929,735Nycwasco
24,095,277 25,799,277Omwasco

4s4,839Ruiri Thau 409,839

6,3 19,433Tcawasco 3.9'19,433

6,005,379 6,255,3'79Tuu ru

1,417 ,564 I,507 ,564Naromoru
39s,0s6,023SUB TO'IAL 378,351,341

(37,835,134) (39,s0s,602)LESS: l0% Gcneral Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts
340,516.207 355,550,421NET'I'RADE DEBTORS

Nyeri Watcr Company 17,000 17,000

Nyeri County Government 7l ,000 s6.000

Tharaka Nithi County 600,000 600.000

Othaya Mukurwc-ini Watcr Company 7,000 7,000

Murang'a Water Company 2,2t3,024 1,894.964

Villagc Nuts Limited 17,000

Mweiga Secondary School 24,000

Ewasco 60,000

SUB'I'OTAL 2,96lt,024 2,615,964

GRAND'I'O'IAL 343,484,231 358,166,385
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Annex III(a)
STAFF OUTSTANDING IMPREST AS AT 30 JUNE 2019

Annex III (b)
EMPLOYEE COSTS (SALARY ADVANCE) AS AT 30 JUNE 20I9
Alexander Timothy Gitonga 28,000

SUB TOTAL 28,000

DETAILS
DATE OF
ISSUE AMOUNT (KSHS.)

A. KWSP
Ministry of Environment, Water & Natural Resources (G K
Mathu) 26-Mar-07 5 1,760

Sub-total 51,760

(;RAND TOTAL 5 t,760

14
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A LTST OF CREDITORS AS AT 30,IUNE 20I9

t92,640
35,000

l.3ri7 6.10

Details

A. ITECUIIRENT
1,160,000Kenya National Audit Office

Rentokil Initials
Honoraria
SUB-TOTAL

B. I)EVEI,OPMENl'
20,26t,144Ranju Ltd

8,396,276Saman Engineering Company Ltd
4,I 89,489AMG Sagrin Ltd

267,t20Mazingira & Engineering Consultants Ltd
40,000Davis & Shirtliff

t.986,2s6Mjengo & Allied
128,3 l0Global View Associate
455,481Eland Salari
564,920Nation Media
s3 3,6q0Standard Group

Evaton System Ltd
348.000Royal Media

37.902,916S T]B-TOTAL

C. SIIORTTERM LOAN
30,000,000Meru watcr and Se rverage Scrvices (MEWASS)

69,290,556.I'OTAL
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.A.nrount Kshs

732,320



ANALYSIS OF DEFICIT FY 20I8/19

(A) Expenses reflected in Ststement of Financial Performance
lncome which have no correspondlng cash inflow (lncome);

(i) Depreciation

(ii) General Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts

(iii) Specific Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts

Add:
(B) Expenses reflected ln Strtement of Flnanclal Performrnce
whose cash lnflow ls from GoK Development grant which is

rellected as clpitsl reserves:

(i) ADB GoK Board Support Counterpart Expenses

(iD ADB GoK Small Towns Counterpart Expenses

(iii) Foreiga travel
(iv) Laboratory Materials & Equipments
(v) Trade shows and Exhibitions
(vi) Contracted professional
(vii) Workshops and Seminars
(viii) Bank charges - Devpt
(ix) Project Supervision Staff Expenses

(x) Computer Stationeries & Accessories
(xi) Publishing, Printing & Stationery
(xii) Project Fuel & Lubricants
(xiii) Project Vehicle Maintenance
(xiv) Drought Mitigation
(xv) Telephone
(xvi) Salaries
(xvii) Office & House Keeping
(xviii) Electricity
(xix) Contracted Guards
(xx) Thangatha
(xxi) Sagana restoration Project
(xxii) Ura Dam
(xxiii) Advertising & Publicity
(xxiv) Staff Training
(xxv) Computer Repairs & Software Maintenance

(xxvi) Property Repairs & Maintenance
(xxvii) ISO 9001 :2015 QMS
(xxviii) Catering services
(xxix) Exhauster
(xxx) Audit fees

(xxxi) Corporate Social Responsibility
(xxxii) Karia-ini Dam

46

Ksh.

170,886,789
(1,670,469)
5,596 273

174,812,593

50,000
140,200

I,3t2,075
l0l,016

t,266,700
847,297

3,147,633
95,961

I I ,148,000
4,t40,929
3,5 t7 ,t t7
4,419,919
2,s5t,957
27,856,394

446,400
73,539

t76,200
64,732

t44,7 t0
605,000

t,774,576
235,500

l,090,380
391,400

2,004,760
238,100

286,300

I,760,540
780,196

580,000
175,000

200,000

Tana Wrt€r Works D€velopment Agency
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 2019

ANNEX V
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(xxxiii) Small Dams and pans

(xxxiv) ADB GoK Counterpart Expenses _ Kenya Towns
Sustainable Water Supply & San program
(xxxv) Kianjuri Dam
(xxxvi) Conference and Meeting
(xxxvi) Karatina Sewerage
(xxxvii)Postage and Courier
(xxxviii) Professional Subscription
(xxxix)Legal Fees

184,650

36,040,1 55

2,230,000
915,400
145,000

10,000

63,400
75,000 105,286, r 35

12,989,470
293.088.197

*This relales to expences paidfrom a ears collected/ron llrsps. The income was occounredfor in lheprevious accounting periods. The receipt was during the reporling period and was urilised to Jinance theFY 20 1 8/201 9 expenditures.
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Add
(C) Expenses Financed from arrears collected from WSpsr
Board Administrative Costs fee

280.098.727


